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COVER
RATIONALE
The cover design features a multitude of arrows that converge
to form part of a star, reminiscent of the star in the Perdana
Petroleum Berhad logo. The vivid colours in the cover design
mirror the dynamism of our organization.

GROUP VISION
To be the leading and preferred offshore marine operator for the
upstream oil & gas industry in the region.
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VIRTUE
Diligence is a virtue that is highly prized
throughout our organization. It is a secret of
our success.
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Perdana Petroleum Berhad

Directors’ Profile
Shamsul Saad, 48, assumed the position of Managing Director
of Perdana Petroleum Berhad (formerly known as Petra
Perdana Berhad) (“PPB”) in April 2010.
His oil & gas career started with Sarawak Shell Berhad in Miri,
where he held various positions from 1988 to 1994. Upon
leaving Sarawak Shell, he became General Manager of Techno
Indah Sdn Bhd, a Kuok/Perlis Plantation joint venture with then
Malaysia Shipyard and Engineering. In 1996, he took up the
position of Managing Director of Oakwell Industries Sdn Bhd,
an oil and gas equipment supplier and engineering maintenance
services company.
He started his own company, Compact Ventures Sdn Bhd in
1999, to continue business in broadcast & multimedia design and
systems integration as a follow up to his project work for the
Kuala Lumpur Commonwealth Games 1998; today he still retains
ownership of the company and remains its Executive Chairman.
Shamsul joined the PPB Group in 2001 with the Group’s major
expansion in integrated brownfield services activities. Later he
was the Executive Director for the Group’s main operating
company at the time, Petra Resources Sdn Bhd. He was the
primary driving force behind the development of PPB Group’s
offshore marine business, which started with the acquisition of
Intra Oil Services Berhad (IOS) in 2004. He became Executive
Director of IOS and oversaw the Group’s marine operations. He
was instrumental in charting the strategic growth of offshore
marine as a core business within the PPB Group and its
expansion as a significant regional player. The growth of marine
as a major PPB core business enabled the Group to list on
Bursa Malaysia its original core business through then
subsidiary, Petra Energy Berhad.
He was the Vice President of Malaysian Oil & Gas Services
Council (MOGSC) from 22 April 2010 to 26 April 2012 after
serving in its EXCO from 30 April 2008.
Shamsul graduated from the University of Florida, USA in 1986
with a bachelor’s degree in Chemical Engineering.

Shamsul Saad
Managing Director
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Dato’ Kho Poh Eng, a Malaysian, aged 55, was appointed as
an Executive Director of Perdana Petroleum Berhad (formerly
known as Petra Perdana Berhad) (“PPB”) on 4 February 2010.
He holds a Bachelor of Commerce (Honours) from the
University of Dalhousie, Nova Scotia, Halifax, Canada. He is a
member of the Remuneration Committee of PPB.
Dato' Kho started his career with a private limited company
involved in crude oil quality and quantity survey of petroleum
products in 1981 and left in September 1983 to join F.E. Zuellig
(M) Sdn Bhd as its Branch Manager responsible for business
development in East Malaysia. He was one of the co-founders in
1988 of Damai Teknik Sdn Bhd, which provided maintenance,
engineering and manpower services for the upstream oil and gas
industry in the country. His role in Damai Teknik includes providing
management and technical services to Petra Resources Sdn Bhd
(“PRSB”) since the founding of PRSB in 1988.
He joined PPB as Senior General Manager in 2000, and
spearheaded the listing exercise of PPB, the transfer of the
Company’s listing from the Second Board to the Main Board of
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad in January 2003, and the
listing of Petra Energy Berhad on the Main Board of Bursa
Malaysia in July 2007. As the Senior General Manager, he was
also instrumental in the development and management of the
Petra Perdana Group’s corporate and finance services. He has
been key to various corporate exercises involving the PPB
Group, such as acquisition of companies, vessels and
integrated services for brown field projects.
His brother, Koh Pho Wat, is an Executive Director of PPB. He
does not have any conflict of interest with PPB and neither has
he been convicted of any offence within the past 10 years.

Dato’ Kho Poh Eng
Executive Director
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Perdana Petroleum Berhad

Directors’ Profile
Surya Hidayat Abd Malik, a Malaysian, aged 60, was appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director and Chairman of
Perdana Petroleum Berhad (then known as Petra Perdana
Berhad) (“PPB”) on 4 February 2010. He was then appointed
to the Audit Committee but relinquished the positions of
Chairman and member of Audit Committee upon his
appointment as Executive Director of PPB on 23 April 2010. He
holds a Master Mariner Class 1 (Master Foreign Going) from
the United Kingdom.
During the period from 1970-1980, he held various positions on
board foreign going vessels under different flags. He was
engaged by Kontena Nasional Berhad in 1980 and left to join
Sarawak Shell Berhad (“Shell”) in 1981, where he held various
management positions in the marine, supply base operations,
logistics and procurement divisions.
His last posting prior to his retirement in February 2010 was that
of Contracting & Procurement Country Manager for Shell
Malaysia Exploration & Production and Regional Manager for
Project Supply Chain for Shell Upstream International Asia
Pacific. Surya was also a member of the Board of Trustees for
four of Shell’s pension funds for a period of nine years.
Surya also sits on the Board of Directors of Petra Energy
Berhad as a representative of PPB, which holds a 26.9% equity
stake in the former.
He does not have any family relationships with any member of
the Board or major shareholder of PPB. He does not have any
conflict of interest with PPB and neither has he been convicted
of any offence within the past 10 years.

Surya Hidayat Abd Malik

Executive Director
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Koh Pho Wat, a Malaysian, aged 51, was appointed as an
Executive Director of Perdana Petroleum Berhad (formerly
known as Petra Perdana Berhad) (“PPB”) on 4 February 2010.
He holds a Bachelor of Engineering (Industrial) from the
Technical University of Nova Scotia, Halifax, Canada.
He is also an Executive Director of Intra Oil Services Berhad
(“IOS”) and Perdana Marine Offshore Pte Ltd (“PMO”), whollyowned subsidiaries and offshore marine operators of PPB. He
is responsible for all vessels chartering and and the
development of new markets and ventures for the PPB Group.
Koh Pho Wat started his career with Sarawak Shell Berhad
(“Shell”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Royal Dutch/Shell
Group of Companies which is involved in the exploration and
production of oil and gas. He spent 13 years with Shell and was
involved in various areas of the upstream oil and gas industry
including procurement, operations, logistics, project and
materials management.
He joined PPB in 1996 and held positions in areas covering
sales of engineered equipment, project management,
engineering & maintenance services, offshore marine and
support services.
He was instrumental in developing PPB’s brownfield business
with the inception of Transfield Petra JV and, through it, Petra
Perdana’s first integrated maintenance contract from Shell
Refinery Port Dickson. As the principal driver, he developed
PPB’s integrated brownfield services into a major core business
by leveraging the capabilities of integrated maintenance into the
ExxonMobil major turnkey retrofit contract and, subsequently,
the initial Shell Topside Major Maintenance Hook Up and
Commissioning contract. He has been a key management
personnel at every significant milestone in the growth of PPB
Group; and is one of the key members of the management team
for the successful listing of PPB on Bursa Malaysia.
His brother, Dato’ Kho Poh Eng, is an Executive Director of
PPB. He does not have any conflict of interest with PPB and
neither has he been convicted of any offence within the past
10 years.

Koh Pho Wat
Executive Director
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Perdana Petroleum Berhad

Directors’ Profile
Ganesan Sundaraj, a Malaysian, aged 50, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Perdana Petroleum
Berhad (formerly known as Petra Perdana Berhad) (“PPB”) on 4
February 2010. He is Chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committees of PPB.
A Chartered Accountant by profession, he is a member of the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants, an associate member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and a
Chartered Audit Committee Director (CACD) with the Malaysian
Institute of Internal Auditors.
He was attached to an international audit firm Ernst & Young
from 1981 to 1990 and has vast experiences in the corporate &
restructuring disciplines. He also holds position as Director in
Analabs Resources Berhad, Pan Asia Pacific Berhad, Promto
Berhad, CHG Industries Berhad and Bukit Katil Resources
Berhad.
He does not have any family relationships with any member of
the Board or major shareholder of PPB. He does not have any
conflict of interest with PPB and neither has he been convicted
of any offence within the past 10 years.

Ganesan Sundaraj

Independent Non-Executive Director
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Raja Anuar Raja Abu Hassan, a Malaysian, aged 56, was
appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Perdana Petroleum Berhad (formerly known as Petra Perdana
Berhad) (“PPB”) on 18 March 2010. He is Chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit and
Remuneration Committees of PPB.
He is a Chartered Accountant by profession and is a member of
the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, a member of the
Malaysian Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a Fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a
Chartered Member of the Chartered Institute of Internal Auditors.
During his career, he held senior positions in finance and
internal audit in several listed companies in various industry
sectors. His broad working experience included holding
positions as Internal Audit Manager of PROTON Holdings
Berhad; Commercial Accounting Manager of Sime Darby
Plantations; Head, Overseas Operations of Malayan Banking
Berhad; General Manager Internal Audit of Sapura Holdings;
and Director, Internal Audit of Golden Hope Plantations Berhad.
He has considerable experience in the financial and reporting
systems operating in a number of foreign countries, having
served on audit/non-audit related assignments in Asia, Europe,
Africa and U.S.A. He also holds position as Independent
Director in MSM Malaysia Holdings Berhad.
He does not have any family relationships with any member of
the Board or major shareholder of PPB. He does not have any
conflict of interest with PPB and neither has he been convicted
of any offence within the past 10 years.

Raja Anuar Raja Abu Hassan
Independent Non-Executive Director
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Perdana Petroleum Berhad

Directors’ Profile
Idris Zaidel, a Malaysian, aged 41, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Perdana Petroleum
Berhad (formerly known as Petra Perdana Berhad) (“PPB”) on
23 April 2010. He is a member of the Malaysian Bar Council and
is a practising lawyer with his own practice in Kuala Lumpur. He
is Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of
the Audit and Nomination Committees of PPB.
He obtained his degree in Kulliyah of Laws from International
Islamic University, Kuala Lumpur in 1995 and began his legal
career at the chambers of Messrs. Adnan, Sundra & Low before
moving on to work at Messrs. Md. Tajuddin & Co and Messrs.
Hisham, Sobri & Kadir and subsequently setting up his own firm,
Messrs. Idris Zaidel & Partners. His areas of expertise are civil
litigation, corporate, labour, banking and conveyancing laws.
He does not have any family relationships with any member of
the Board or major shareholder of PPB. He does not have any
conflict of interest with PPB and neither has he been convicted
of any offence within the past 10 years.

Idris Zaidel

Independent Non-Executive Director
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Hamdan Bin Rasid, a Malaysian, aged 52, was appointed as an
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director of Perdana Petroleum
Berhad (formerly known as Petra Perdana Berhad) (“PPB”) on
20 July 2010.
He obtained his Degree in Accountancy from UiTM and is a
member of the Malaysian Institute of Accountants. He began
his career as Senior Internal Audit with Bank Bumiputra
Malaysia Berhad (BBMB) from 1981 to 1987. He then joined
BBMB Discount House Berhad in 1987 and served as the
Deputy Chief Executive until the year 2000. He was later
promoted and appointed as the Vice President of Bumiputra
Commerce Bank Berhad from year 2000 to 2001. In 2002, he
was appointed as Vice President (Treasury & Investment) of
Affin Merchant Bank Berhad. He was also the Associate
Consultant for Ciptaan Wawasan Sdn Bhd from 2005 to 2007.
He is currently the General Manager (Fixed Income) of
Investment Department in Lembaga Tabung Haji and a member
of the Board of TH Properties Sdn Bhd.
He does not have any family relationships with any member of
the Board or major shareholder of PPB. He does not have any
conflict of interest with PPB and neither has he been convicted
of any offence within the past 10 years.

Hamdan Rasid
Non-Independent Non-Executive Director
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Christopher Then
General Manager, Special Projects

Teo Swee Hong
Senior General Manager, Technical
& Marketing

Leong Wai Lian
General Manager, Human
Resource & Adminstration

Captain Jimmy Wong Mun Nyen
General Manager, Commercial
(Perdana Nautika Sdn Bhd - PNSB)

Rafeedah A Rahman
Director, Perdana Marine Offshore
(PMO)
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Senior Manager, Chartering
(IOS/PNSB)
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VOLUME
A balanced mix of vessel types enables
Perdana Petroleum to optimize productivity
for the highest volume of work possible.
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Perdana Petroleum Berhad

Group Structure

(formerly known as Petra Perdana Berhad)
100%

Intra Oil Services Berhad

100%

Asiaway Sdn Bhd

100%

Perdana Marine Offshore Pte Ltd

100%

Osam Marine Sdn Bhd

100%

Ampangship Marine Sdn Bhd

100%

Kovan Marine Sdn Bhd

100%

Petra Offshore Ltd

100%

Malawi Marine Sdn Bhd

100%

Perdana Mercury Ltd

100%

Perdana Venus Ltd

100%

Perdana Jupiter Ltd

100%

Odin Explorer Navigation Ltd

100%

Petra Teknik Sdn Bhd

100%

Petra Asia Ltd

100%

Perdana Neptune Ltd

100%

Perdana Saturn Ltd

55%

Perdana Nautika Sdn Bhd

55%

Petra Marine Australia Pty Ltd

51%

Geoseas Technologies Ltd

100%

26.9% Petra Energy Bhd

Perdana Pluto Ltd
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Financial Highlights
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Managing Director’s Message

Dear Valued Fellow Shareholders,
Your company adopted a new name in 2011 of Perdana
Petroleum Berhad (Perdana Petroleum or the Group). For the
Group, the year is not only memorable for the name change but
also for the continuing revival of its fortunes in the face of stern
challenges. The name change also encapsulates the Group’s
determination in shaping its strategies to effect a growing
positive future.
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
Some of the issues besetting the Group would necessarily take
time to resolve, due partly to the nature of the industry we serve,
its prevailing macro-economic factors but also as the lingering
consequence of the deconsolidation of our previous second
core business of brownfield services at Petra Energy Berhad
(PEB). When the green field sector of the oil & gas industry
finally stirred in the later part of 2011, the demand for offshore
support vessels (OSV) remained lethargic for long stretches.
Job delays and postponements were also a common
occurrence going into the first quarter of the next year.
The Group’s corporate spirit was truly tested in 2011. In the face
of such adversities, pragmatism is a pre-requisite for the Board
and Management. Thus, whilst the Group managed to reduce
its operating losses to RM29.9 million from RM67.7 million the
previous year, it resolved to write off RM39.3 million in the value
of aged vessels to regain its vitality as a prominent regional
OSV player. This, with further moves in 2012, will provide the
Group with more dynamism moving forward with room to spare
for development into related business areas.
Legacy issues notwithstanding, your Board feels that the Group
is now ready to step out and go places. Indeed, we have reason
to be optimistic about the Group’s performance in 2012 as we
look ahead to tackling residual issues and capitalize on the fully
operational new fleet as demand continually rise and new
opportunities emerge.
On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is my privilege to present
you with the Annual Report of Perdana Petroleum for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011.

The severe contraction in the demand for offshore support
vessels experienced since 2009 spilled over into 2011, with
signs of recovery only emerging towards the middle of the year.
The recovery, when it finally came, was modest. Nonetheless,
we managed to gain an improvement in our charter rates to a
level well above the slump rates. However, significant OSV
supply overhang remaining in the market in almost all segments
meant average utilization rate of our new-built fleet though much
increased, remained low at about 73% for 2011. Competition
for jobs became more intense as new vessels, including those
belonging to foreign operators, entered the market.
At the end of 2011, the Group took delivery of the final vessel in
its fleet renewal programme that began in 2007. The 300-man
work barge, which would be mobilized in 2012, completes the
Group’s fleet of newbuilds at 14 vessels – seven of which are
already sporting new markings in line with the Perdana name
change. As for its old assets, the Group disposed of two vessels
and wrote down a significant amount off the remaining seven
vessels to reflect a more aggressive selling strategy.
The Group’s Integrated Brownfield Services business, via
associated company PEB, had a relatively quiet 2011 and
offered no new opportunities for synergistic collaborations with
the Group’s fleet.
On a positive note, our subsidiary company Perdana Nautika
Sdn Bhd was last year approved as a PETRONAS-licensed
contractor. It has since secured its first chartering contracts.
Over the longer term, the Board expects Nautika to especially
enhance our fleet’s domestic marketing operations and hence
profit margins.
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Perdana Petroleum Berhad

Managing Director’s Message

FINANCIAL REVIEW
For the financial year 2011, the Group
managed to register a marginal
increase in turnover to RM255.9
million from RM254.9 million in
FY2010.
Net
loss
(excluding
associate’s contribution) narrowed to
RM69.9 million from RM72.3 million previously. Most of the top
line improvement was attributable to a mild recovery in charter
rates, particularly towards the end of the year. As for the net
loss, RM39.3 million or approximately 56% of the amount was
due to a write down on old vessels. The Group views immediate
elimination of a large portion of the costs of carrying old vessels
from its books as essential to its efforts to restore financial
robustness to a level that enables effective business
development and value creation going forward.
The RM39.3 million write down, representing approximately a
half the book value of the aged vessels, was in preparation for
an aggressive sales strategy for the older assets and, ultimately,
complete elimination of both operational and carrying costs for
this category of assets for sale. In combination with the upturn
in demand and higher charter rates for newbuilds, this strategy
provides a more pragmatic route for a return to operational
profitability in our results.

CORPORATE EXERCISES
The lion’s share of the equity in the Group has always been held
by long-term institutional and private investors who have always
placed their trust in our Management. Our prudent stewardship
of Perdana Petroleum in 2011 is likely to affirm their confidence
in the leadership of the Group.
In 2011, we welcomed another major shareholder in hook-up &
commissioning and topside maintenance specialist Dayang
Enterprise Holdings Berhad (Dayang). The Group placed out
45.0 million shares or 10% of its issued and paid-up share
capital to initiate Dayang’s participation in the Group. The Board
believes working closely with Dayang would be practical and
beneficial to the Group’s vessel chartering business and may
open opportunities for further business collaborations.

DIVIDEND
Without the write down the Group would have posted a net loss
of RM29.9 million for FY2011. Prudent cash-flow management
saw the Group’s gearing reined in at 0.58 times at the close of
the year.

Although we are determined to create positive shareholder
value, in view of the still on-going turnaround efforts, the
Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2011. We
hope the year ahead would finally see the positive returns
expected of the Group.
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INDUSTRY TRENDS AND PROSPECTS
The positive outlook for the global economy at the beginning of
2011 spurred the development of many E&P projects. Massive
E&P developments in Brazil, West Africa and Australia were given
the green light as crude soared to a 30-month high of USD113.9
a barrel at end-April, kick-starting serious demands for drilling rigs
of various kinds. The trickle-down effect of demand in OSV
obviously followed. But the euphoria did not last.

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES
The Group made a strategic move to write down its old assets
to ensure a full return to positive results for this year and the
years ahead. The Group should not be hamstrung by old assets
as we have completed our fleet renewal programme.
We are rebuilding our business model to leverage the strategic
stake taken up by Dayang in a recent corporate exercise. Our new
fleet consists of 14 vessels representing our two core fleet-mix:
*
*

Eight units of AHTS, two 5,000 BHP AHTS, six mid-size
AHTS between 10,000 and 12,000 BHP; and
Six maintenance & hook-up work vessels being four work
barges and two workboats.

This provides for a more strategic balance between charters in
the green field and brownfield areas of the upstream OSV
markets. It also provides higher probability of achieving more
longer-term charters in today’s vibrant Malaysian market and
also within the region.
Besides focusing on growing the Group’s OSV business, the
Group is keen to expand its scope of participation in the
upstream O&G industry, primarily to diversify its income base.
This is especially in view of the vagaries of OSV business and
the corporate deconsolidation of PEB. One area of focus in the
past year is participation in sub-surface work including the
development and production of crude, possibly with a technical
partner. The directors believe the Group has the capability to
mobilize the requisite resources to set forth in this direction.

As sovereign debt crisis in the Eurozone deepened and signs
emerged that the global economy would be seriously impacted,
the recovery in upstream O&G activities lost its momentum.
Crude prices sank to a low of USD79.2. However, the prices
have since recovered strongly and hovered above the USD100
mark in April 2012 due to geopolitical tensions and fears of supply
disruptions. The consensus among industry analysts is that
despite the likelihood of global economic recovery facing strong
headwinds, supply uncertainty will keep crude prices relatively
stable at least in the high USD90s if not higher. This would keep
the engine of E&P activities worldwide from sputtering.
Consequently, the demand for our services in the domestic and
regional markets in 2011 also saw a definite rise. Domestic E&P,
however, far outstripped regional recovery and provided the
backbone of demand for OSV; our vessels had mostly then
streamed back to domestic waters to meet this increase in
demand. The Group saw in 2011 a significant upward trend in
the utilization and charter rates for mid-size AHTS, which are
more limited in supply relative to smaller AHTS, even as smaller
AHTS demands were larger. Our more balanced fleet make-up
with the work barges and work boats in place in 2011 also
contributed to increased longer-term charter revenue at stable
rates for the year.
Two key external factors kept the Group’s performance muted
towards year-end and prolonged into the first quarter of 2012:
a rougher and longer monsoon season, which limited work
offshore for rigs and OSVs; and the availability of drilling rigs in
the domestic and regional markets in a timely manner as global
demand increased. Both resulted in activities shutting down and
project postponements.
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Managing Director’s Message

GROUP BUSINESS PROSPECTS

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Having emerged recently from a very challenging period in
Perdana Petroleum’s history, we are still in the process of
regaining our former strength. Thanks to the decisiveness of the
Management, we were able to extricate ourselves from a rather
precarious situation.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Perdana Petroleum, I
wish to express our sincere appreciation to you, our valued
shareholders, for your inspiring support and trust in us. Some
very personal messages of support came in from shareholders,
some small and some were significant shareholders, kept our
spirits high when times were at their toughest. We are
determined to succeed beyond our previous highs.

As a result of the improvement in utilization and charter rates
and a more aggressive sale strategy for older assets, the
Group’s core offshore marine business is likely to provide better
results in the near future.
Befitting Malaysia’s position as the hub of upstream activities in
the region, the national oil company PETRONAS is reported to
have budgeted RM300 billion in capex in the five years from
2012 to sustain production levels, with a strategic focus on
exploration efforts in domestic waters. Current bidding activities
suggest a further upswing in the demand for OSV of all kinds is
expected to commence within the second quarter of the year.
As expected, the Group began to recover during FY2011. It was
a slow, painful process which we anticipate will be completed
before the end of the current year, by which time we hope also
to have made significant progress in our efforts to widen our
income stream as mentioned earlier.
Consequently, we are optimistic about the Group’s performance
in 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Through the years, Perdana Petroleum has flourished as a
management-driven organization. Our current Board of
Directors has performed in an exemplary manner to uphold a
tradition of excellence.
Our transparency in conducting corporate exercises has earned
us back the trust and respect of our shareholders. We remain
faithful to our commitment to lead Perdana Petroleum to
profitability without sacrificing our integrity.

I also wish to thank our valued customers, business partners
and suppliers for your unwavering support throughout our
period of recovery. We are keen to receive your encouragement
and advice as we progress into a vibrant future together.
Many fund managers and analysts have also played a crucial
role in our recovery with their belief in the Management and the
Board. The Minority Shareholder Watchdog Group has also
been instrumental in our success by ensuring that our integrity
is beyond doubt/question.
I thank my colleagues on the Board for their insight and
guidance. Lastly, I would like to highlight the tremendous
determination and herculean efforts of all the managers and
executives at Perdana Petroleum. Their contributions have
enabled our organization to fulfill the hopes of our employees
at all levels.
Perdana Petroleum is now well on the way to attaining even
greater glory. Although the journey ahead is fraught with
challenges, our courage and unrelenting determination point to
our eventual success.

Thank you.

Shamsul Saad
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Perutusan Pengarah Urusan
Pemegang Saham Yang Dihormati,

TINJAUAN OPERASI

Syarikat kita telah bertukar nama kepada Perdana Petroleum
Berhad (Perdana Petroleum atau Kumpulan) pada 2011. Bagi
Kumpulan, tahun 2011 bukan sahaja tesemat di hati kerana
pertukaran namanya tetapi juga kerana berterusnya usaha
memulihkan keterampilannya dalam suasana yang sangat
mencabar. Justeru, pertukaran nama Kumpulan seyogia
menyirat keazamannya melaksanakan strategi yang akan
memastikan pertumbuhan perniagaannya pada masa depan.

Penguncupan teruk permintaan terhadap kapal sokongan luar
pesisir yang dialami pada 2009 berlarutan sehingga 2011,
dengan tanda-tanda pemulihan hanya berbayang pada
pertengahan tahun itu. Apabila pemulihan akhirnya menjelang
tiba, kadar peningkatannya amat sederhana. Biarpun begitu,
kita berupaya merangsang kadar sewa kapal mengatasi paras
lazim pada musim permintaan merosot. Sebaliknya, dengan
pasaran terus mengalami bekalan kapal yang berlebihan,
purata kadar penggunaan rangkaian kapal baru kita hanya
meningkat secara sederhana pada 2011, ke paras yang masih
dianggap rendah, iaitu 73%. Kenyataannya, persaingan untuk
mendapatkan kerja bertambah sengit dengan ketibaan di
pasaran domestik beberapa banyak kapal baru termasuk kapal
milik pengendali asing.

Tidak dinafikan, penyelesaian sesetengah isu yang merundung
Kumpulan semestinya memakan masa disebabkan sifat
perjalanan industri yang diceburinya, faktor makroekonomi dan
kesan tekun susulan pemisahan perniagaan teras kedua
Kumpulan, perkhidmatan “brown field” (medan yang sudah
mengeluarkan hasil bumi) menerusi Petra Energy Berhad
(PEB). Apabila kegiatan penerokaan minyak (greenfield)
akhirnya bergerak semula pada pertengahan 2011, permintaan
pasaran terhadap kapal sokongan luar pesisir (OSV) kekal lesu
berpanjangan. Penangguhan kerja menjadi kelaziman yang
berlarutan hingga ke suku pertama 2012.
Jati diri warga Kumpulan benar-benar teruji sepanjang 2011.
Dalam menghadapi kepelbagaian rintangan yang mendatang,
Lembaga Pengarah dan Pengurusan Kumpulan semestinya
terjurus kepada pendekatan pragmatis. Maka, walaupun
Kumpulan berupaya mengurangkan rugi kendaliannya kepada
RM29.9 juta daripada RM67.7 juta pada tahun sebelumnya, ia
mengambil keputusan menghapus kira RM39.3 juta daripada
nilai kapal-kapal lamanya demi mengembalikan ketangkasan
Kumpulan sebagai pengusaha OSV yang ternama di rantau ini.
Beserta langkah-langkah lain yang diambil pada 2012, tindakan
ini dijangka menyerlahkan keupayaan Kumpulan, sekaligus
menyediakan
ruang
secukupnya
bagi
Kumpulan
membangunkan bidang perniagaan yang berkaitan.
Dari itu, Lembaga Pengarah yakin bahawa Kumpulan kini
bersedia mengorak langkah ke laman baru biarpun terpaksa
menangangi sisa masalah yang diwarisi. Malah kita mempunyai
asas yang kukuh untuk berasa optimis akan prestasi Kumpulan
pada 2012 dengan memanfaatkan rangkaian lengkap kapal
baru kita ketika permintaan pasaran meningkat secara
berterusan dan dengan munculnya peluang-peluang baru.
Bagi pihak Lembaga Pengarah, dengan penuh takzim saya
membentangkan Laporan Tahunan Perdana Petroleum bagi
tahun kewangan berakhir 31 Disember 2011.

Pada akhir 2011, Kumpulan turut menyambut ketibaan sebuah
kapal, iaitu baj kerja yang merupakan pesanan terakhir dalam
program pembaharuan rangkaian kapalnya yang bermula pada
2007. Baj kerja dengan kemudahan penginapan bagi 300 pekerja
itu akan mula beroperasi pada 2012, setelah selesainya
pemasangan peralatan perlu. Ketibaannya melengkapkan
rangkaian kapal baru Kumpulan pada jumlah 14 buah, dengan
tujuh daripadanya sudah dipasangkan lambang baru selaras
dengan pertukaran nama Kumpulan. Darihal aset lamanya pula,
Kumpulan sudah pun menjual dua buah kapal lama dan
menghapus kira sebahagian daripada nilai baki tujuh buah kapal
bagi mencerminkan pendekatan penjualan yang agresif.
Perkhidmatan bersepadu “brown field” Kumpulan di bawah
kendalian syarikat bersekutu PEB melalui tahun 2011 tanpa
banyak perkembangan dan tidak menawarkan peluang baru
kerjasama bersinergi dengan rangkaian kapal Kumpulan.
Perkembagan positif dicatatkan oleh anak syarikat Kumpulan,
Perdana Nautika Sdn Bhd, yang telah diluluskan sebagai
kontraktor berlesen PETRONAS dan susulan itu meraih kontrak
catarnya yang sulung. Dalam jangka panjang, Lembaga
Pengarah menaruh harapan Nautika berupaya menyerlahkan
permintaan terhadap rangkaian kapal Kumpulan di pasaran
domestik, lantas meningkatkan margin keuntungan.
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TINJAUAN KEWANGAN
Bagi tahun kewangan 2011, Syarikat berjaya mencatat
kenaikan perolehan, biarpun kecil, kepada RM255.9 juta
berbanding RM254.9 juta pada 2010. Kerugian bersih Syarikat
(tidak termasuk sumbangan Syarikat bersekutu) pula susut
kepada RM69.9 juta daripada RM72.3 juta pada tahun
sebelumnya. Faktor utama yang menyumbang kepada
kenaikan perolehan Kumpulan adalah kadar sewa yang
beransur pulih, terutama menjelang hujung tahun. Dari segi
kerugian bersih pula, RM39.3 juta atau kira-kira 56% daripada
jumlahnya disebabkan amaun yang dihapus kira daripada nilai
kapal lama. Kumpulan mengambil pendirian
bahawa melupuskan sebahagian besar kos
menanggung (carrying cost) kapal lama di dalam
akaunnya seberapa segera amat mustahak
dalam usaha mengembalikan keteguhan
kewangan
Kumpulan
ke
tahap
yang
membolehkannya mengembangkan perniagaan
dan menjana nilai tambahan.
Penurunan nilai kapal-kapal lama sebanyak
RM39.3 juta, atau separuh nilai bukunya, adalah
persediaan Kumpulan melaksanakan pendekatan
penjualan agresif bertujuan menghapuskan
kesemua kos kendalian dan kos tanggungan aset
yang dikenal pasti akan dijual. Strategi ini, disertakan dengan
pertambahan permintaan dan kadar sewa bagi kapal baru, akan
merintis laluan lebih pragmatis untuk mengembalikan
keuntungan kendalian dalam keputusan perniagaan kita. Tanpa
mengambil kira penurunan nilai tersebut, Kumpulan telah
mencatat kerugian bersih RM29.9 juta bagi tahun kewangan
2011. Dalam pada itu, pengurusan aliran tunai yang berhemat
menyaksikan Kumpulan mengekang nisbah umpilannya pada
tahap 0.58 kali.

Pada 2011, Kumpulan menyambut penyertaaan satu lagi
pemegang saham utama, Dayang Enterprise Holdings Berhad
(Dayang), syarikat yang mengungguli bidang penyambungan
dan pentauliahan serta penyenggaraan kelengkapan pelantar
minyak. Kumpulan menempatkan 45.0 juta saham yang
bersamaan 10% modal terbitan dan berbayar syarikat bagi
membolehkan penyertaan Dayang. Lembaga Pengarah
percaya bahawa kerjasama rapat dengan Dayang bukan
sahaja praktis dan bermanfaat kepada perniagaan catar kapal
Kumpulan malah berupaya merangsang kerjasama dari aspek
perniagaan yang lain.

DIVIDEN
Walaupun Lembaga Pengarah berazam meningkatkan nilai
pegangan pelabur, usaha memulihkan kewangan Kumpulan
tidak mengizinkan kami mengesyorkan pembayaran dividen
bagi tahun kewangan berakhir 31 Disember 2011. Kami
berharap tahun yang berikutnya akan menyaksikan Kumpulan
memperoleh pulangan positif seperti yang dijangkakan.

INISIATIF STRATEGIK
PELAKSANAAN KORPORAT
Sebahagian besar ekuiti Kumpulan sekian lama dimiliki pelabur
institusi dan individu yang memegangnya secara jangka
panjang, atas dasar amanah dan kepercayaan mereka
terhadap pihak Pengurusan. Pengemudian Perdana Petroleum
secara berhemat pada 2011 pasti meningkatkan keyakinan
mereka terhadap kepemimpinan Kumpulan.

Kumpulan mengambil langkah strategik menurunkan nilai aset
lama untuk memastikan ia terus mencatat keputusan positif tahun
ini dan tahun-tahun di hadapan. Kumpulan tidak seharusnya
terbelenggu oleh aset lama sedangkan program pembaharuan
rangkaian kapalnya sudah pun selesai dilaksanakan.

PPB ar2011(2):Layout 1 5/25/12 12:50 PM Page 29

2011 Annual Report

Kita sedang membina semula model perniagaan Kumpulan
dengan mengambil kira potensi yang boleh dijana susulan
penyertaan Dayang sebagai pemegang saham. Rangkaian
kapal kita merangkumi 14 buah kapal daripada dua kumpulan:
*
*

Lapan unit AHTS – dua dengan daya 5,000 BHP, enam
dengan daya 10,000 BHP hingga 12,000 BHP; dan
Enam kapal kerja menyenggara & menyambung terdiri
daripada empat baj kerja dan dua bot kerja.

Rangkaian ini memberikan keseimbangan strategik di dalam
pasaran OSV, iaitu di antara catar medan sedang diteroka dan
medan sudah berhasil. Ia juga meningkatkan kemungkinan
Kumpulan meraih lebih banyak catar jangka panjang di dalam
pasaran tempatan dan serantau yang kegiatannya kini
semakin rancak.
Selain menumpukan perhatian pada perniagaan OSV,
Kumpulan
turut
berminat
mengembangkan
skop
pembabitannya di dalam aktiviti sektor huluan industri minyak
dan gas, dengan hasrat mempelbagaikan punca pendapatan.
Hal ini penting kerana aliran perniagaan OSV cenderung
berubah-ubah serta setelah terpisahnya PEB dari segi
pengurusan korporat. Satu bidang yang menjadi tumpuan
Kumpulan dalam tahun yang berlalu ialah mempertimbangkan
pembabitannya dalam kerja bersangkutan cari gali, termasuk
pembangunan dan pengeluaran minyak mentah, mungkin
dengan kerjasama rakan kongsi teknikal. Lembaga Pengarah
berpendapat Kumpulan berkeupayaan menggerakkan sumber
untuk menghala ke arah ini.

ARAH ALIRAN DAN PROSPEK INDUSTRI
Gambaran positif keadaan ekonomi global pada awal 2011
merangsang pembangunan beberapa banyak projek E&P di
seluruh dunia. Pada akhir April, apabila harga minyak mentah
mencecah paras tertinggi 113.9 dolar setong dalam tempoh 30
bulan, Brazil, Afrika Barat dan Australia teruja memulakan
pembangunan E&P secara besar-besaran, lantas memarakkan
permintaan
terhadap pelbagai jenis pelantar gerudi.
Perkembangan ini mencetuskan pertambahan permintaan
terhadap OSV. Namun, gejolak E&P ini tidak bertahan lama.
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Apabila krisis hutang negara di Eropah mencengkam dan timbul
pula tanda-tanda bahawa ekonomi dunia akan terjejas teruk,
pemulihan dalam kegiatan sektor huluan minyak dan gas mula
mengendur. Harga minyak mentah menjunam ke paras 79.2
dolar sebelum beransur-ansur pulih. Pada April 2012, harga
minyak mentah kembali mengatasi paras 100 dolar atas
kebimbangan geopolitik dan gangguan bekalan. Rata-rata
penganalisa industri berpendapat biarpun ekonomi dunia
berkemungkinan mengharungi tempoh sukar namun
ketidaktentuan bekalan minyak akan memastikan harga bahan
itu berada di paras kukuh dan stabil sekurang-kurangnya 90
dolar setong. Ini akan memastikan kegiatan E&P di seluruh
dunia tidak tergendala.
Tidak hairanlah permintaan terhadap perkhidmatan kita di
pasaran domestik dan serantau pada 2011 turut mencatat
kenaikan. Hakikatnya kegiatan E&P di negara kita jauh lebih
rancak berbanding negara-negara jiran dan merupakan
tonggak permintaan OSV serantau; kapal-kapal kita
kebanyakannya kembali ke perairan negara untuk memenuhi
pertambahan permintaan ini. Kumpulan menyaksikan aliran
menaik yang signifikan dalam kadar sewa dan kegunaan bagi
AHTS bersaiz sederhana yang tidak begitu banyak di pasaran
berbanding bilangan AHTS kecil - biarpun permintaan terhadap
AHTS kecil lebih tinggi. Rangkaian kapal kita yang lebih
seimbang pada 2011 – dengan bilangan baj dan bot kerja yang
sesuai untuk menggandingi AHTS – turut menyumbang kepada
pertambahan perolehan sewa jangka panjang dan pada kadar
yang stabil.
Ada dua faktor luaran yang meredam prestasi Kumpulan
menjelang akhir tahun dan berterusan hingga ke suku pertama
2012: musim tengkujuh yang lebih panjang daripada biasa yang
mengehadkan kerja bagi pelantar gerudi dan OSV; dan
gelinciran masa pembekalan pelantar gerudi dalam pasaran
domestik dan serantau disebabkan pertambahan permintaan
global. Kedua-duanya menyebabkan projek tergendala
atau tertangguh.
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PROSPEK PERNIAGAAN KUMPULAN
Kita baru sahaja muncul daripada tempoh yang sangat
mencabar dalam sejarah Perdana Petroleum dan kini masih
berada di dalam rangka pemulihan kekuatan Kumpulan. Kita
bersyukur, atas kebijaksanaan Pengurusan membuat
keputusan jitu, Kumpulan berupaya mengatasi pelbagai
kerumitan yang mengancam kedudukannya. Hasil peningkatan
kadar kegunaan dan kadar sewa kapal, dengan disertakan
strategi penjualan aset lama secara lebih agresif, perniagaan
teras Kumpulan berkemungkinan mampu mencatat keputusan
yang lebih baik dalam tempoh terdekat.
Selaras dengan kedudukan Malaysia sebagai pusat kegiatan
huluan serantau, syarikat minyak negara PETRONAS
dilaporkan akan membelanjakan RM300 bilion dalam tempoh
lima tahun dari 2012 untuk mengekalkan paras pengeluaran
minyak dan gas, dengan fokus strateginya tertumpu pada
usaha penerokaan di perairan negara. Kegiatan pembidaan
tender semasa membayangkan permintaan terhadap pelbagai
jenis OSV akan bermula pada suku kedua 2012.
PENGHARGAAN
Kumpulan jelas berada di landasan pemulihan pada tahun
kewangan 2011. Walau bagaimanpun, proses itu berjalan
dengan perlahan dan dijangka selesai hanya tahun ini, apabila
kita juga dijangka mencatat kemajuan tertentu dalam usaha
mempelbagaikan punca pendapatan Kumpulan seperti yang
disebutkan di atas.
Oleh sebab itu, kami berasa optimistik tentang prestasi
Kumpulan pada 2012.

URUS TADBIR KORPORAT
Sejak sekian lama Perdana Petroleum berkembang maju
sebagai sebuah organisasi yang dipacu pihak pengurusan.
Lembaga Pengarah berpegang teguh pada tradisi
kecemerlangan ini.
Ketelusan kita dalam menjalankan urusan korporat telah meraih
kepercayaan dan sanjungan para pemegang saham. Kita
menanam azam terus setia pada janji kita untuk memimpin
Perdana Petroleum dalam usaha menempa kemajuan dan
keuntungan tanpa mengorbankan ketulusan kita.

Bagi pihak Lembaga Pengarah Perdana Petroleum, saya
mengucapkan setinggi-tinggi penghargaan kepada anda,
pemegang saham yang kami hormati, atas sokongan dan
kepercayaan anda terhadap kami. Ada di kalangan anda,
pelabur utama mahupun pelabur kecil, yang sudi mengutuskan
warkah sokongan peribadi untuk memarakkan semangat kami
sewaktu mengharungi tempoh getir. Kami yakin bahawa
kejayaan yang lebih bermakna menanti di hadapan.
Saya juga mengucapkan terima kasih kepada sekalian
pelanggan, rakan niaga dan pembekal atas sokongan dan
kerjasama anda sepanjang tempoh Kumpulan menjalani
pemulihan perniagaan. Kami mengalu-alukan kata-kata
semangat mahupun teguran yang membina tatkala kita
bergerak bersama menuju masa depan yang lebih cerah.
Pengurus dana dan penganalisa pelaburan juga banyak
membantu dalam pemulihan Kumpulan dengan menunjukkan
keyakinan mereka terhadap kebolehan Pengurusan dan
Lembaga Pengarah. Badan Pengawas Pemegang Saham
Minoriti (MSWG) turut menyumbang terhadap kejayaan kami
dengan memastikan ketulusan kami tidak boleh dipertikaikan.
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Saya mengucapkan terima kasih kapada rakan-rakan di dalam
barisan Pengurusan dan Lembaga Pengarah atas pandangan,
nasihat dan teguran bernas mereka. Akhir sekali, saya
menyanjungi ketekunan dan keazaman yang ditunjukkan para
pengurus dan eksekutif di Perdana Petroleum. Sumbangan
mereka telah membolehkan organisasi kita memenuhi harapan
kakitangan kita pada semua peringkat.
Perdana Petroleum kini jelas melangkah ke arah kejayaan yang
lebih besar. Walaupun terdapat pelbagai rintangan di dalam
perjalanan itu, dengan dorongan dan keazaman yang kuat dan
berterusan kejayaan pasti milik kita.

Terima kasih.

Shamsul Saad
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VALUE
All our endeavours are motivated
by our commitment to maximize
value for our stakeholders.
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Members of the Audit Committee
The current members of the Audit Committee are as follows:
Ganesan Sundaraj
Raja Anuar Raja Abu Hassan
Idris Zaidel

Chairman (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Member (Independent Non-Executive Director)
Member (Independent Non-Executive Director)

Responsibilities of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is responsible for the following:
*
*
*
*

*
*

*

To examine the manner in which management ensures and monitors the adequacy of the nature, extent and effectiveness of
accounting and internal control systems;
To examine and review the adequacy and effectiveness of management and operations;
To review the statutory accounts and other published financial statements and information;
To monitor relationships with external auditors, to ensure that there are no restrictions on the scope of the statutory audit; to
make recommendations on the auditors’ appointment, remuneration and dismissal; and to review the activities, findings,
conclusions and recommendations of the external auditors;
To review arrangements established by management for compliance with regulatory and financial reporting requirements;
To approve the appointment or termination of the Head of Internal Audit who shall report directly to the Committee and have
a right of direct access to the Chair of the Committee at all times; to review the adequacy of the scope, functions, competency
and resources of the internal audit function and that it has the necessary authority to carry out its work; to receive and review
reports from the Head of Internal Audit; and on occasion to commission audit engagements to be conducted on the
Committee’s behalf; and
To perform any other duties as required by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad or any other regulatory bodies.

The purview of the Audit Committee extends to all the operations within the Company and the Group.
Audit Committee Meetings held during the financial year 2011
The Audit Committee held five meetings during the financial year under review with the following attendance record:
Audit Committee Members

Attendance

Ganesan Sundaraj
Raja Anuar Raja Abu Hassan
Idris Zaidel

5/5
5/5
3/5

Summary of Activities of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee activities during the financial year ended 31 December 2011 (“FY 2011”) encompassed the following:
a)

b)
c)

In overseeing financial reporting, the Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly financial statements for the fourth quarter and
year ended 31 December 2010 (“FY2010”) at its meeting on 28 February 2011, the annual audited financial statements for
FY2010 at its meeting on 28 April 2011, and the quarterly financial statements for the first, second and third quarters of FY2011
at its meetings on 24 May 2011, 18 August 2011 and 15 November 2011 respectively, before recommending the same for the
Board’s approval;
The Audit Committee deliberated on the external auditors’ report on the observations made in the course of the audit at its
meetings on 28 February 2011;
The Audit Committee approved the 2011 Internal Audit Plan and the Group Risk Management Framework at its meeting on
28 February 2011. The Head of Internal Audit presented at every Audit Committee meeting the Group’s internal audit reports
on the status and progress of its internal audit assignments including the summary of audit reports issued, audit
recommendations and Management’s response to the recommendations.
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d)
e)

On 28 April 2011, the Audit Committee reviewed the Statement of Internal Control and recommended it for inclusion in the
2010 Annual Report; and
On 15 November 2011, the Audit Committee reviewed the external auditors’ Audit Planning Memorandum comprising their
scope of audit and proposed fees for the statutory audit for FY2011.

During the financial year, the Audit Committee met with the external auditors twice without the presence of the Management and
Executive Directors to discuss on key concerns and obtain feedback relating to the Company’s affairs. Nothing has come to the
attention of the Audit Committee that causes them to believe that the financial reporting is inconsistent with the accounting standards
and other legal requirements.
Internal Audit Function
The Board obtains sufficient assurance of the effectiveness of the system of internal control in the Group, through regular reviews
and appraisals conducted by the Group Internal Audit Department, which reports directly to the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee determines the adequacy of the scope, function and resources of the internal audit function.
In its endeavour to provide reasonable assurance on the state of internal control in the Group, the internal audit function carried
out its reviews based on the 2011 Internal Audit Plan which was develop using a risk-based approach. The main focus of audit
assignments were for three most active companies in the Group. The main activities of the internal audit function in 2011 focused
on the following:
- Vessel repairs and maintenance audit
- Procurement audit
- Crewing audit
- Chartering audit
- Risk assessment workshop.
All the internal audit activities for FY2011 were conducted by the in-house audit team. There were no areas of the internal audit
function which were outsourced. During the financial year 2011, an amount of RM327,347 (2010 - RM286,352) was incurred in
respect of the Group’s internal audit function.
External Audit Function
Besides performing the planned statutory audit, the external auditors also provided non-audit services where the engagement
does not impair the independence or objectivity of the external auditors.
Based on the external auditors’ review, in accordance with applicable Approved Standards on Auditing in Malaysia, the financial
statements for FY2011 were drawn to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group in accordance with the
Companies Act 1965 and approved accounting standards. The performance of the external audit function has been reviewed and
assessed based on agreed performance criteria as set out in the external auditors’ Audit Planning Memorandum, timelines and
adequacy of resources to achieve the agreed scope of the external audit. The Audit Committee has recommended the
re-appointment of the external auditors for FY2011.
Statement in Relation to Allocation of Options pursuant to Employees’ Shares Option Scheme (“ESOS”)
As there were no allocations of options during the financial year 2011, there was no verification exercise conducted by the Audit
Committee.
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Statement of Internal Control

RESPONSIBILITY
The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining sound internal control and risk management systems that would provide
reasonable assurance in ensuring the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, to safeguard shareholders’ interest and the Group’s asset.
The system of internal control is designed to manage the Group’s risk within acceptable risk profile, rather than eliminate the risk
of failure to achieve Group’s policies and business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or losses.

FRAMEWORK OF THE SYSTEM ON INTERNAL CONTROLS
The key elements of the Group’s system of internal controls are as follows:
*

Clear organisational structures with defined lines of responsibility and delegation of authority.

*

Centralised control of key functions such as corporate affairs, finance, tax, legal, human resources and risk management.

*

Participation of management in the identification and evaluation of significant risks relevant to their business areas, and the
design and operation of suitable internal controls in managing these risks.

*

The Audit Committee, through the Group’s Internal Audit Department, examines the effectiveness of the Group’s system of
internal control. The Internal Audit Department adopts a risk-based approach in identifying areas of priority for assurance
engagements.

*

The financial performance of the Company for every quarter is subject to review by the Audit Committee and the annual
financial statements by both the internal auditors and the external auditors. The Audit Committee then reports and makes
recommendations to the Board of Directors.

The Board and the management are committed to continuously enhance the Group’s system of internal control to ensure its
relevance, adequacy and integrity.
The Group’s system of internal control does not apply to associated company where the Group does not have full management
control over them.
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RISK MANAGEMENT
There is ongoing risk management process to identify, assess, control, monitor and report significant risks that may affect the
achievement of the Group’s business objectives.
The said process is regularly reviewed by the Board and accords with the Statement on Internal Control – Guidance for Directors
of Public Listed Companies.
The processes in place for the financial year under review involved conducting risk management workshops and subsequent
development of Risk Management Schedule to capture and prioritise key risk profiles, delegate ownership of risks, attach timelines
to management control and action plans, and, provide continuous monitoring and reporting of risks.
The Board, working together with the management, continues to take measures to further strengthen the Group’s risk management
system as one of the means to achieve the Group’s business objectives.

REVIEW OF STATEMENT BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS
The external auditors have reviewed this Statement of Internal Control for inclusion in the Annual Report of the Group for the
financial year ended 31 December 2011. The external auditors reported to the Board that nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that the Statement is inconsistent with their understanding of the process adopted by the Board in reviewing
the adequacy and integrity of the system of internal controls.
This statement was approved by the Board of Directors on 30 April 2012.
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Board of Directors’ Statement

STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Board of Directors firmly believes that good corporate governance is the key to the improved long-term performance of the
Group and that a sound governance structure is fundamental to safeguard the interests of all its stakeholders.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Size and Composition
The Board comprises eight (8) Members of whom four (4) are Executive Directors and four (4) are Non-Executive Directors.
Three (3) of the Non-Executive Directors are independent and meets the Independent Director criteria as set out in the Bursa
Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) Listing Requirements.
The Independent Non-Executive Directors are independent of Management and free from any business or other relationship with
the Company which could materially affect the exercise of their independent judgment. The Company had identified and appointed
two (2) of the Independent Non-Executive Directors from the Minority Shareholders’ Watchdog Group’s Independent Directors
Pool. The Independent Non-Executive Directors facilitates the Board to exercise objective judgment independently in particular
from the Management.
For the time being, the current composition is well balanced and caters effectively to the scope and complexity of the Group’s
operations as a leading and preferred offshore marine operator for the upstream oil and gas industry in the region. The Malaysian
Code on Corporate Governance states that “there should be a clearly accepted division of responsibilities at the head of the
company which will ensure a balance of power and authority, such that no one individual has unfettered powers of decision”. The
Company has appointed En. Shamsul Saad as the Managing Director and his responsibilities as the chief executive officer (CEO)
is to oversee the operations and affairs of the Board, providing leadership, strategic vision and meeting immediate performance
targets without neglecting longer-term growth opportunities of the Group. The Board views that a chairman who is an independent
non-executive director will provide a balance to the influence of the CEO and have agreed not to combine the roles. The Board
will ensure that the candidate selected as the Independent Chairman has the experience, temperament and commitment to be
effective in his role.
The Board’s main duties include regular oversight of the Group’s business operations and financial performance and ensuring that
the infrastructure, internal controls, and risk management processes are firmly in place to assess and manage business risks,
inter-alia, operational, credit, market and liquidity risks.
The Directors discharge their duties as effective Board members with personal dedication of time and ability to bring new and
different perspectives to the Board.
The Board has identified Mr Ganesan A/L Sundaraj as the Senior Independent Director to whom concerns of shareholders and
other stakeholders may be conveyed.
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Board Meetings and Supply of Information
The Board meets regularly, at least once every quarter to review the business performance of the Group.
Members of the Board deliberate and in the process evaluate the potential risks and viability of business propositions and corporate
proposals that have significant impact on the Group’s business or on its financial position.
The Chairman of the Audit Committee will inform the Directors at Board meetings, matters and recommendations which the Audit
Committee view ought to be highlighted to the Board.
Board meetings are governed by a structured formal agenda and the agenda for each Board meeting and papers relating to the
agenda items are forwarded to all Directors for their perusal in advance of the date of the Board meeting. Board meeting papers
circulated to Directors include details of business propositions and corporate proposals including where relevant, supporting
documents such as professional advice from solicitors or advisers. The Directors are thus able to peruse the Board papers and
appraise the issues to be deliberated at the Board meeting well before the date of the meeting.
The Board has direct access to Senior Management and has complete and unimpeded access to information relating to the
Company in the discharge of their duties. The Directors may require to be provided with further details or clarifications on matters
tabled at Board meetings. Senior Management Officers are invited to attend the Board meetings to update the Board on their
respective portfolios and to brief the Directors on proposals submitted for the Board’s consideration. Professional advisers,
accountants and solicitors appointed by the Company to advise on corporate proposals to be undertaken by the Company would
be invited to attend Board meetings to render their advice and opinion, and also to clarify any issues raised by the Directors relating
to the corporate proposals tabled for the Board’s consideration. The Directors have the liberty to seek external professional advice
at the Company’s expense, if they so require.
The Directors are also regularly updated and advised by the Company Secretary on new statutory and regulatory requirements
relating to the discharge of their duties and responsibilities, including amendments to the Listing Requirements by Bursa Securities.
Every Member of the Board has ready and unrestricted access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. The Company
Secretary attends all Board meetings and ensures that accurate and proper records of the proceedings of Board meetings and
resolutions passed are kept.
Even though the Company has not appointed a Chairman of the Board, the Directors at each Board Meeting will appoint an
Independent Non-Executive Director to chair the proceedings. This is to ensure there is a balance to the influence of the Executive
Directors with no one individual having unfettered powers of decision.
The commitment of the Board of Directors in ensuring effective discharge of their duties and responsibilities is reflected by the
high number of Board meetings held during the financial year ended 31 December 2011.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the Board met 5 times and the attendance record of the present Board
members are as follows:Names of Directors
Shamsul bin Saad
Dato’ Kho Poh Eng
Koh Pho Wat
Ganesan A/L Sundaraj
Surya Hidayat Abdul Malik
Raja Anuar Raja Abu Hassan
Idris Zaidel
Hamdan Rasid

Attendance
5/5
5/5
4/5
5/5
4/5
5/5
4/5
5/5
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Directors’ Training and Education
The Group acknowledges that continuous education is vital for the Board members to gain insight into the state of economy,
technological advances and regulatory updates. The Directors are encouraged to attend continuous education programmes to
further enhance their skills and knowledge, where relevant. All Directors have completed the Mandatory Accreditation Programme
pursuant to the Listing Requirements of Bursa Securities and have been briefed by the Management on the operations and policies
of the Company to familiarize themselves with the Company’s business. As part of the annual in-house Directors’ Training, the
Secretary conducted trainings on the topic, “Corporate Governance Blueprint” and “2012 Amendments to the Listing Requirement”
and views were exchanged amongst the Directors who attended this training.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the following Directors attended the trainings as set out below:
Director

Mode of Training

Title of Training

Raja Anuar Raja
Abu Hassan

Seminar

Related Party Transactions – What Directors
and Investors need to know
Managing Assets under IFRS/FRS

Seminar

Duration of Training
1 day
2 days

Idris Zaidel

Seminar

Related Party Transactions – What Directors
and Investors need to know

1 day

Hamdan Bin Rasid

Seminar
Seminar
Training
Seminar
Forum
Talk
Training

Training on Safety Manual Writing
Seminar on Corporate Directors
Making A Difference
Investing Properties in The United
6th World Halal Forum
Talk on Career Building
Training on FRS 139 & 140

1 day
2 days
3 days
1 day
2 days
1 day
1 day

Appointment of Board Members and Terms of Reference of Nomination Committee
The proposed appointment of a new member of the Board other than those nominated by shareholders for appointment at the
Annual General Meeting and the proposed re-election of existing Directors who are seeking re-appointment or re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company will be reviewed and assessed by the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
will, upon its review and assessment, submit its recommendation on the proposed appointment or re-election of Directors to the
Board for approval.
The Nomination Committee comprises entirely of Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are as follows:
a)

To review regularly the Board structure, size and composition and make recommendations to the Board with regard to any
adjustments that are deemed necessary.

b)

To recommend for appointment to the Board of Directors, candidates for all directorships to be filled by the shareholders or
the Board, taking into consideration the candidates’:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

c)

skills, knowledge, expertise and experience;
professionalism;
integrity; and
in the case of candidates for the position of independent non-executive Directors, the nominating committee should also
evaluate the candidates’ ability to discharge such responsibilities/functions as expected from independent non-executive
Directors.

To assess Directors on an on-going basis, the effectiveness of the Board as a whole, the Committees of the Board and the
contribution of each individual Director.
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d)

To recommend to the Board, Directors to fill the seats on Board Committees.

e)

To review annually the Board’s mix of skills and experience and other qualities including core competencies which nonexecutive Directors should bring to the Board.

f)

To recommend to the Board for continuation (or not) in service of executive Director(s) and Directors who are due for retirement
by rotation.

g)

To orientate and educate new Directors as the nature of the business, current issues within the Company and the corporate
strategy, the expectations of the Company concerning input from the Directors and the general responsibilities of Directors.

The Nomination Committee upon its recent annual review carried out, is satisfied that the size of the Board is sufficient for the
Board to effectively discharge its roles and responsibilities for the benefit of the Company and its business and that there is
appropriate mix of skills and core competencies in the composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee is satisfied that all
the Members of the Board are suitably qualified to hold their positions as Directors of the Company in view of their respective
academic and professional qualifications, experience and qualities.
The Nomination Committee has also upon its recent annual review carried out, concluded that all the Directors have received
training during the financial year ended 31 December 2011 that is relevant and would serve to enhance their effectiveness in
the Board.
Meetings of the Nomination Committee are held as and when required.
Directors’ Remuneration and Term of Reference of Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee carries out the review of the overall remuneration policy for Executive Directors whereupon
recommendations are submitted to the Board for approval. The Remuneration Committee and the Board ensure that the Company’s
remuneration policy remains supportive of the Company’s corporate objectives and is aligned with the interest of shareholders,
and further that the remuneration packages of Executive Directors are sufficiently attractive to draw in and to retain persons of
high caliber.
The Board as a whole determines the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors, and each individual Director abstains from the
Board decision on his own remuneration. The Non-Executive Directors are paid annual fees and attendance allowance for each
Board meeting that they attend.
The Remuneration Committee comprises mainly of Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:
a)

To recommend to the Board the framework of Executive Directors’ remuneration and the remuneration package for each
Executive Director, drawing from outside advice as necessary.

b)

To recommend to the Board any performance related pay schemes for Executive Directors.

c)

To review Executive Directors’ scope of service contracts.

d)

To consider the appointment of the service of such advisers or consultants as it deems necessary to fulfill its functions.

Meetings of the Remuneration Committee are held as and when necessary.
Re-appointment and Re-election of Director
The Articles of Association of the Company provide that at every annual general meeting, one-third of Directors for the time being
and those appointed during the financial year shall retire from office and shall be eligible for re-election. The Articles further provide
that all Directors shall retire from office once at least in each three (3) years but shall be eligible for re-election.
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Board Committees
The Board has established Board Committee to assist the Board in the running of the Company. The functions and terms of
reference of Board Committees as well as authority delegated by the Board to these Committees are clearly defined by the Board.
The Board Committees are as follows:
-

Audit Committee
Nomination Committee
Remuneration Committee

The composition of the Board Committees are reflected as follows:

Ganesan A/L Sundaraj
Raja Anuar Raja Abu Hassan
Idris Zaidel
Dato’ Kho Poh Eng

Audit Committee

Nomination Committee

Remuneration Committee

Chairman
Member
Member
-

Member
Chairman
Member
-

Member
Member
Chairman
Member

Directors’ Remuneration
The Remuneration Committee has been delegated the responsibility to review and recommend to the Board the remuneration
packages and other terms of employment for the Executive Directors.
The details of the remuneration of the Directors of the Company for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 are as follows:
Group

Executive Directors
Non-Executive Directors

Fees
(RM’000)

Salaries
(RM’000)

Bonus
(RM’000)

Benefits-in-kind
(RM’000)

Total
(RM’000)

285

4,957
147

200
-

281
-

5,435
432

The number of Directors whose total remuneration falls within the respective bands is as follows:
Number of Directors
Executive
Non-Executive
Below RM50,000
RM50,001 – RM100,000
RM600,001 – RM650,000
RM850,001 – RM900,000
RM1,000,001 – RM1,050,000
RM1,650,001 – RM1,700,000

1
1
1
1

4
-

4

4
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting
The Board is committed to provide a balanced, clear and meaningful assessment of the financial performance and prospects of
the Group in all the disclosures made to the stakeholders and the Regulatory Authorities.
The Board is assisted by the Audit Committee to oversee the financial reporting processes and the quality of the financial reporting
of the Group. The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the integrity of the Group’s annual and interim financial statements. It
also reviews the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting policies and the changes to these policies.
The Statement of Responsibility by Directors in respect of the preparation of the annual audited financial statements of the Group
is set out below.
Internal Control
The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a system of internal controls that provides reasonable assurance of effective
and efficient operations, and compliance with laws and regulations, as well as with internal procedures and guidelines.
The size and complexity of the operations of the Group involves the acceptance and management of a wide variety of risks. The
nature of these risks means that events may occur which would give rise to unanticipated or unavoidable losses. The Group’s
system of internal controls are designed to provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against the risk of material errors,
fraud or losses occurring. The Management meets regularly to ensure that the accountability for managing the significant risks
confronting the Group are being satisfactorily addressed on an ongoing basis.
The effectiveness of the system of internal controls of the Group is reviewed by the Audit Committee during its quarterly meetings.
The review covers the financial, operational and compliance controls as well as the risk management functions. The Internal Audit
Division monitors compliance with policies and standards and the effectiveness of internal control structures across the Group.
The Statement on Internal Control, which provides an overview of the state of internal controls within the Group, is set out in this
Annual Report.
Audit Committee
In addition to the duties and responsibilities set out under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee also acts as a forum for
discussion of internal control and risk management issues and it contributes to the Board’s review of the effectiveness of the
internal control and risk management systems of the Group.
The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are tabled to the Board for noting and for action by the Board where appropriate.
The activities carried out by the Audit Committee during the year are set out under the Audit Committee Report in this
Annual Report.
Relationship with External Auditors
It is the policy of the Audit Committee to meet with the external auditors at least twice a year to discuss their audit plan, audit
findings and the Company’s financial statements. These meetings are held without the presence of the Executive Directors and
the Management. The Audit Committee also meets with the external auditors whenever it deems necessary.
The services provided by the external auditors include statutory audits, recurring annual non-statutory audit and non-audit services.
Terms of engagement for these services are reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board. The Audit Committee
approves all other non-audit services on a case by case basis. In approving such cases, the Audit Committee reviews the
independence and objectivity of the external auditors to ensure that these will not be compromised.
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Effective Communications with Shareholders
A key element of good corporate governance is being transparent and accountable to all stakeholders. Underlying the transparency
and accountability objectives is the provision of clear, relevant and comprehensive information which is timely and readily accessible
to all stakeholders.
Taking cognizance of this, the Group maintains a high level of disclosure to and communication with its stakeholders with the
provision of clear, comprehensive and timely information, particularly to shareholders and investors, for informed investment
decision making, through a number of readily accessible channels.
The annual report of the Company is a key channel of communication with shareholders and investors.
An important forum for communication and dialogue with shareholders is the general meetings of the Company where shareholders
are given both the opportunity and the time to raise questions on the agenda items of the general meetings and where Directors
of the Company would provide the answers and appropriate clarification where required.
The Company conducts separate media and analyst briefing with the release of its quarterly and annual results announcements.
The media briefings are intended not only to facilitate a wider dissemination of the announcement of the financial results of the
Group to as wide an audience of investors and shareholders as possible but also to keep the investing public and shareholders
updated on the progress and development of the business of the Group as well as any strategic developments within the Group.
To promote wider dissemination of corporate and financial information that is made public, the annual reports of the Company, the
quarterly announcements of the financial results of the Group, announcements and disclosures made pursuant to the disclosure
requirements of the Bursa Securities Listing Requirements and other corporate information are also made available on the
Company’s website, www.perdana.my.
Prompt and timely availability of information is also important for shareholders and investors to make informed investments
decisions. Information that is out of date, albeit comprehensive and accurate, would be of less value to shareholders and investors.
As such, the Group places a high priority on ensuring that information is made available and disseminated as early as possible.
Investor Relations
Another important channel of communication with shareholders, investors and the investment community generally, both in Malaysia
and internationally, is the Group’s investor relations activities. The Group has a strong following amongst domestic and international
institutional investors, fund managers and equity analysts, and a direct channel to them exists in the investor relations function of
the Group. Management personnel responsible for the Group’s investor relations function are of very senior levels, thereby providing
views and information on the Group that is appropriate and substantive to investors and research analysts.
Statement of Directors’ Responsibility in the Preparation of Financial Statements
The Directors are required by the Companies Act 1965 (“the Act”) to prepare financial statements for each financial year in
accordance with approved accounting standards so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group at the end of the financial year, and of the results and cash flow of the Company and the Group for the financial year.
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Company and its subsidiaries maintain proper accounting records which disclose
with reasonable accuracy the financial positions of the Company and the Group in compliance with the provisions of the Act and
approved accounting standards in Malaysia.
In addition, the Directors have general responsibilities for taking such steps that are reasonably available to them to safeguard the
assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
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Utilization of proceeds raised from corporate proposal
On 8 December 2011, the Company announced the completion of the placement of 45,012,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.50
each (“PPB Shares”) following the listing of and quotation for the said new PPB Shares on Main Market of Bursa Securities which
was issued and allotted on 5 December 2011 at an issue price of RM0.71 per PPB Share. The proceeds of RM31.96 million from
the above mentioned Placement has been fully utilised subsequent to the financial year ended 31 December 2011.
Share Buy-Back
The Company did not undertake any share buy-back exercise during the financial year under review.
Options, Warrants or Convertible Securities
During the financial year ended 31 December 2011, the Company has not issued any options, warrants or convertible securities.
American Depository Receipt (ADR) or Global Depository Receipt (GDR)
The Company did not sponsor any ADR or GDR programme.
Sanctions and/or Penalties
There were no sanctions and/or penalties imposed on the Company and/or its subsidiaries, directors or management by any
regulatory bodies.
Non-Audit Fees
The non-audit fees paid to the external auditors during the financial year ended 31 December 2011 was RM2,000.
Profit Guarantee
The Company did not receive any profit guarantee during the financial year ended 31 December 2011.
Material Contracts
There were no material contracts entered into by the Company or its subsidiaries involving the directors’ and/or major shareholders’
interest for the financial year ended 31 December 2011.
Variation in Results
There was no material variances between the audited results for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 and the unaudited
results previously announced.
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Corporate Responsibility

The Group believes responsible corporate practices are
essential to the sustainability and long-term growth of its
business. We remain committed to undertaking exemplary
corporate conduct in the creation of sustainable value for all our
stakeholders. Our Framework for Sustainability, covering the
dimensions of the Workplace, Environment, Community and
Marketplace, is subsumed in our corporate culture, as an
integral part of our organizational strategy. Priorities in our
corporate responsibility (“CR”) initiatives are guided by
exigencies that are bound by the sustainability framework and
available resources.
In FY2011, our CR efforts were primarily directed towards
Workplace and Environment initiatives. We worked to
strengthen the skill set and expertise of our workforce so that
they in turn could help us deliver on our CR commitment to our
stakeholders. We continued to prioritise good Health, Safety,
Security & Environmental (“HSSE”) practices given the high-risk
and hazardous work environment in which we operate. Being
the Malaysian leader in our segment of the offshore support
vessel business and a respected brand name in the regional
market, we have the added responsibility of ensuring we
maintain stringent compliance with international HSSE
standards. In 2011 we launched a series of safety campaigns
on-board our vessels with completion slated for 2012. This will
not only help strengthen the Perdana Petroleum brand but also
Malaysia’s international standing in the oil and gas industry. All
these will remain priority areas for us as we work towards
turning around and moving up to the next level of growth.

While HSSE remains its top priority, the Group regards training and
education and active participation in industry association as a major
corporate responsibility.

As part of our contribution to a sustainable business
environment, Perdana Petroleum is also a very active
participant in the Malaysian Oil & Gas Services Council
(“MOGSC”), the largest grouping of services companies in the
oil & gas industry in the country. It is a well-recognized, effective
grouping which involves participation of stakeholders such as
MPRC, PETRONAS, MATRADE and various other agencies
domestic and international in certain activities at various levels
to spur the development of technology transfer, value creation
and commercial growth for the overall oil & gas services
industry. Above all else MOGSC is the conduit for us to provide
input and feedback to ensure sustainability of our business with
respect to policies and direction to be taken by the main E&P
national authority, PETRONAS.
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Directors’ Report

The directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 December 2011.

CHANGE OF NAME
On 7 July 2011, the Company changed its name from Petra Perdana Berhad to Perdana Petroleum Berhad.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is principally an investment holding company and is also engaged in the provision of administrative and management
services to its subsidiaries. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are described in Note 5 to the financial statements. There
have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

RESULTS
The Group
RM’000

The Company
RM’000

Loss after taxation for the financial year

(69,406)

(35,235)

Attributable to:Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(69,171)
(235)

(35,235)
-

(69,406)

(35,235)

DIVIDENDS
No dividend was paid by the Company since the end of the previous financial year and the directors do not recommend the payment
of any dividend for the current financial year.

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS
All material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year are disclosed in the financial statements.

ISSUES OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES
During the financial year,
(a) there was no change in the authorised share capital of the Company;
(b) on 25 November 2011, the Company increased its issued and paid-up share capital from RM225,060,000 to RM247,566,000
by the issuance of 45,012,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each at an issue price of RM0.71 per share for cash for the
purpose of repayment of borrowings and working capital use pursuant to the Company’s private placement. The new shares
were listed and quoted on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 8 December 2011.
(c) the new ordinary shares issued during the financial year ranked pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of
the Company; and
(d) there were no issues of debentures by the Company.
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OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES
During the financial year, no options were granted by the Company to any person to take up any unissued shares in the Company.

WARRANTS 2010/2015
The Company had on 27 October 2010 issued 61,379,785 free Warrants in conjunction with the Rights Issue. The Warrants are
constituted by a Deed Poll dated 15 September 2010.
The salient terms of the Warrants 2010/2015 are as follows:(a) Each Warrant entitles the registered holder to subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share of RM0.50 each in the Company at
any time on or before the maturity date, 26 October 2015, falling five (5) years from the date of issue of the Warrants.
Unexercised Warrants after the exercise period will thereafter lapse and cease to be valid;
(b) The exercise price of the Warrants is fixed at RM1.00 per Warrant;
(c) The new ordinary shares to be issued upon the exercise of the Warrants shall rank pari passu in all respects with the existing
ordinary shares of the Company; and
(d) The Warrants were listed and quoted on the Main Market of Bursa Securities on 1 November 2010.
The movements of the Warrants during the financial year are as follows:Entitlement for ordinary shares of RM0.50 each
At
At
1.1.2011
Exercised
Cancelled 31.12.2011
Number of unexercised Warrants

61,379,785

-

-

61,379,785

BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS
Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps to ascertain
that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance for impairment losses on
receivables, and satisfied themselves that there are no known bad debts and that adequate allowance had been made for
impairment losses on receivables.
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that would require the writing off of bad debts, or the
additional allowance for impairment losses on receivables in the financial statements of the Group and of the Company.

CURRENT ASSETS
Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps to ascertain that any
current assets other than debts, which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course of business, including their value as shown in the
accounting records of the Group and of the Company, have been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the values attributed to the current
assets in the financial statements misleading.
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VALUATION METHODS
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which render adherence to the
existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or inappropriate.

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES
The contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 39 to the financial statements. At the date of this report, there does not exist:(a) any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year which secures
the liabilities of any other person; or
(b) any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.
No contingent or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within
the period of twelve (12) months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the directors, will or may substantially
affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations when they fall due.

CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES
At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report or the financial
statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial statements misleading.

ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE
The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not, in the opinion of the directors,
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.
There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, transaction or event
of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect substantially the results of the operations of the
Group and of the Company for the financial year.

EMPLOYEES’ SHARE OPTION SCHEME (“ESOS”)
The Group’s ESOS was approved by the Securities Commission on 16 August 2001 and shall be in force for a period of ten (10)
years commencing 12 March 2002.
The ESOS was approved by the shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 31 January 2002.
During the financial year, no options under the ESOS were granted. The ESOS expired on 11 March 2012.
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DIRECTORS
The directors who served since the date of the last report are as follows:Shamsul Bin Saad
Dato’ Kho Poh Eng
Koh Pho Wat
Surya Hidayat Bin Abdul Malik
Ganesan A/L Sundaraj
Idris Bin Zaidel
Raja Anuar Bin Raja Abu Hassan
Hamdan Bin Rasid

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS
According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors holding office at the end of the financial year in
shares in the Company and its related corporations during the financial year are as follows:Number Of Ordinary Shares Of RM0.50 Each
At
At
1.1.2011
Bought
Sold
31.12.2011
THE COMPANY
Direct Interests
Shamsul Bin Saad
Dato’ Kho Poh Eng
Koh Pho Wat

11,584,375
19,885,078
22,517,731

-

9,400,000
1,000,000

Deemed Interests
Shamsul Bin Saad
Dato’ Kho Poh Eng
Koh Pho Wat

9,625
100,000
311,000

-

-

2,184,375
19,885,078
21,517,731

9,625#
100,000#
311,000#

Number of Warrants 2010/2015
At
1.1.2011

Bought

Sold

At
31.12.2011

23,437
2,844,724
2,934,200

Direct Interests
Shamsul Bin Saad
Dato’ Kho Poh Eng
Koh Pho Wat

1,579,687
2,844,724
3,434,200

-

1,556,250
500,000

Deemed Interests
Shamsul Bin Saad
Dato’ Kho Poh Eng
Koh Pho Wat

1,312
14,466
42,484

-

-

#

1,312#
14,466#
42,484#

Deemed interested by virtue of his children and spouse’s shareholdings in the Company.

The other directors holding office at the end of the financial year had no interest in shares in the Company and its related
corporations during the financial year.
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DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive any benefit (other than a benefit
included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by directors as shown in the financial statements, or
the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company) by reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with
the director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest.
Neither during nor at the end of the financial year was the Group or the Company a party to any arrangements whose object is to enable
the directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
The significant events during the financial year are disclosed in Note 44 to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
The significant events occurring after the reporting period is disclosed in Note 45 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS
The auditors, Messrs. Crowe Horwath, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed In Accordance With A Resolution Of The Directors
Dated 30 April 2012

Koh Pho Wat

Shamsul Bin Saad
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Statement by Directors

We, Koh Pho Wat and Shamsul Bin Saad, being two of the directors of Perdana Petroleum Berhad (formerly known as Petra
Perdana Berhad), state that, in the opinion of the directors, the financial statements set out on pages 56 to 130 are drawn up in
accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the Company at 31 December 2011 and of their results and cash flows for the financial year
ended on that date.
The supplementary information set out in Note 47 on page 131, which is not part of the financial statements, is prepared in all
material respects, in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or
Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Signed In Accordance With A Resolution Of The Directors
Dated 30 April 2012

Koh Pho Wat

Shamsul Bin Saad

Statutory Declaration

I, Soon Fook Kian, I/C No. 730525-05-5309, being the officer primarily responsible for the financial management of Perdana
Petroleum Berhad (formerly known as Petra Perdana Berhad), do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set
out on pages 56 to 130 are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously
believing the same to be true and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act 1960.
Subscribed and solemnly declared by
Soon Fook Kian, I/C No. 730525-05-5309
at Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory
on this 30 April 2012

Before me

Soon Fook Kian
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of Perdana Petroleum Berhad (Formerly Known as Petra Perdana Berhad)

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of Perdana Petroleum Berhad (formerly known as Petra Perdana Berhad), which
comprise the statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the Company for the
financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages
56 to 130.
Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements have been properly drawn up in accordance with Financial Reporting Standards and the
Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the Company as of
31 December 2011 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended.
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To the Members of Perdana Petroleum Berhad (Formerly Known as Petra Perdana Berhad)

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:(a) In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the Company and its
subsidiaries of which we have acted as auditors have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
(b) We have considered the financial statements and the auditors’ reports of all the subsidiaries of which we have not acted as
auditors, which are indicated in Note 5 to the financial statements.
(c) We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the Company’s financial
statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the preparation of the financial statements of
the Group and we have received satisfactory information and explanations required by us for those purposes.
(d) The audit reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or any adverse comment
made under Section 174(3) of the Act.
The supplementary information set out in Note 47 on page 131 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Securities
Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The directors are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information
in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context
of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of
Accountants (“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information
is prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

OTHER MATTERS
This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the Companies Act 1965
in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for the content of this report.

Crowe Horwath
Firm No : AF 1018
Chartered Accountants
30 April 2012
Kuala Lumpur

Lee Kok Wai
Approval No : 2760/06/12 (J)
Chartered Accountant
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Note

31.12.2011
RM’000

The Group
Restated
31.12.2010
RM’000

The Company
1.1.2010
RM’000

31.12.2011
RM’000

90,095
428,075
95,724
27,507
46

92,684
400,934
90,930
27,507
46

90,804
460,698
62,493
27,507
46

258,610
19,233
2,267
235,111
46

307,461
19,233
6,521
400,949
46

641,447

612,101

641,548

515,267

734,210

3,937
55,646
26,573
3,361
44,221
22,791

6,908
99,293
36,614
3,758
51,188
18,293

5,533
97,827
38,194
51,649
5,057
158,437
21,288

341
93,307
259
2,938
43,241
1,000

1,740
271
259
3,102
47,360
3,018

156,529

216,054

377,985

141,086

55,750

12,255

-

86,361

-

-

810,231

828,155

1,105,894

656,353

789,960

31.12.2010
RM’000

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in an associate
Property, plant and equipment
Amount owing by subsidiaries
Refundable deposits
Intangible assets
Deferred tax asset

5
6
7
8
9
10
11

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Receivables
Amount owing by subsidiaries
Amount owing by related parties
Amount owing by an associate
Tax recoverable
Fixed deposits with licensed banks
Cash and bank balances

Non-current asset classified
as held for sale
TOTAL ASSETS

12
13
8
14

15

16

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

PPB ar2011(2):Layout 1 5/25/12 12:50 PM Page 57

57

2011 Annual Report

Statements of Financial Position (Cont’d)
At 31 December 2011

31.12.2011
RM’000

The Group
Restated
31.12.2010
RM’000

1.1.2010
RM’000

31.12.2011
RM’000

247,566
222,845

225,060
283,239

148,800
379,824

247,566
206,059

225,060
232,056

470,411

508,299

528,624

453,625

457,116

217

580

-

-

470,193

508,516

529,204

453,625

457,116

2,507
174,853
2,449
260

4,048
146,088
3,070
260

2,060
226,865
241

35,047
214

105,108
214

180,069

153,466

229,166

35,261

105,322

59,624
33
99,539
773

66,472
33
98,808
860

125,056
236
1,975
218,019
2,238

5,948
81,450
32

8,573
123,839
32

80,037
-

95,078
-

159,969

166,173

347,524

167,467

227,522

TOTAL LIABILITIES

340,038

319,639

576,690

202,728

332,844

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

810,231

828,155

1,105,894

656,353

789,960

0.95

1.13

1.78

Note

The Company
31.12.2010
RM’000

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

17
18

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(218)

TOTAL EQUITY
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred taxation
Long-term borrowings
Derivative liability
Payables

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables
Amount owing to subsidiaries
Amount owing to related parties
Amount owing to an associate
Short-term borrowings
Provision for taxation

NET ASSETS PER
ORDINARY SHARE (RM)

20
21
24
25

25
8
14
26

28

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Note
REVENUE

29

The Group
Restated
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

(280,800)

-

-

(25,913)

36,547

11,681

24,062

28,262

1,713

4,873

23,658

2,349

38,260

16,554

(3,255)

(2,377)

-

-

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

(21,043)

(27,379)

(10,030)

(12,039)

OTHER EXPENSES

(50,449)

(22,922)

(52,125)

(2,092)

FINANCE COSTS

(18,608)

(22,955)

(11,176)

(19,426)

OTHER INCOME

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COSTS

SHARE OF RESULTS IN AN ASSOCIATE

(256,268)
(404)

2010
RM’000
11,681

GROSS (LOSS)/PROFIT

254,887

2011
RM’000
36,547

COST OF SALES

255,864

The Company

815

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

30

(68,882)

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

31

(524)

LOSS AFTER TAXATION
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES
- Foreign currency translation
- Cash flow hedge

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

4,651
(68,633)
491

(35,071)
(164)
(35,235)

(17,003)
8

(69,406)

(68,142)

(59)
(602)

(56,594)
(1,311)

-

-

(661)

(57,905)

-

-

(70,067)

(126,047)

(35,235)

(16,995)

(16,995)
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Note

The Group
Restated
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

LOSS AFTER TAXATION ATTRIBUTABLE TO:Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

LOSS PER SHARE
- basic (sen)
- diluted (sen)

32
32

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

(69,171)
(235)

(67,738)
(404)

(35,235)
-

(16,995)
-

(69,406)

(68,142)

(35,235)

(16,995)

(69,632)
(435)

(125,684)
(363)

(35,235)
-

(16,995)
-

(70,067)

(126,047)

(35,235)

(16,995)

(15.2)
Not
applicable

(20.3)
Not
applicable
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Non-Distributable
Capital
Redemption Translation
Reserve
Reserve
RM’000
RM’000

Distributable
Cash Flow Other
Hedge
Capital
Reserve Reserve
RM’000
RM’000

Share
Premium
RM’000

Warrant
Reserve
RM’000

148,800

60,377

-

2,127

56

-

-

317,264

528,624

580

529,204

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(72,002)
4,264

(72,002)
4,264

(404)
-

(72,406)
4,264

- as restated

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(67,738)

(67,738)

(404)

(68,142)

Other comprehensive
expenses for the
financial year, net of tax:
- Foreign currency translation
- Cash flow hedge

-

-

-

-

(56,635)
-

(1,311)

-

-

(56,635)
(1,311)

41
-

(56,594)
(1,311)

-

(57,946)

41

(57,905)

Note

Retained
Profits
RM’000

Attributable
NonTo Owners Of controlling
The Company Interests
RM’000
RM’000

Share
Capital
RM’000

Total
Equity
RM’000

The Group
Balance at 1 January 2010
Loss after taxation for
the financial year
- as previously reported
- prior year adjustment

46

-

-

-

-

(56,635)

(1,311)

-

Total comprehensive
expenses for the
financial year

-

-

-

-

(56,635)

(1,311)

-

Amendment of Labuan
Companies Act 1990
on share capital

-

-

-

14,880

24,403

-

61,380
-

(1,888)
-

225,060

(125,684)

(363) (126,047)

-

-

2,127

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

39,283

-

39,283

11,048
-

-

-

-

-

72,428
(1,888)
(4,464)

-

72,428
(1,888)
(4,464)

82,892

11,048

-

(56,579)

(1,311)

2,127

245,062

508,299

217

508,516

225,060
-

82,892
-

11,048
-

-

(56,579)
-

(1,311)
-

2,127
-

240,798
4,264

504,035
4,264

217
-

504,252
4,264

225,060

82,892

11,048

-

(56,579)

(1,311)

2,127

245,062

508,299

217

508,516

Loss after taxation for
the financial year

-

-

-

-

-

(69,171)

(69,171)

(235)

(69,406)

Other comprehensive
expenses for the
financial year, net of tax:
- Foreign currency translation
- Cash flow hedge

-

-

-

-

141
-

(602)

-

141
(602)

(200)
-

(59)
(602)

Total comprehensive
expenses for the
financial year

-

-

-

-

141

(602)

-

(69,632)

(435)

(70,067)

-

-

-

11,048

-

Contributions by and
distributions to owners
of the Company:
- Issuance of ordinary shares
under a private placement
- Issuance of ordinary
shares under rights
issue
- Share issue expenses
- Dividend

33

Balance at 31 December 2010
Balance at 31 December
2010/1 January 2011
- as previously reported
- prior year adjustment
- as restated

46

Contributions by and
distributions to owners
of the Company:
- Issuance of ordinary shares
under a private placement
- Share issue expenses

22,506
-

Balance at 31 December 2011

247,566

9,452
(214)
92,130

(2,127)

(67,738)

(56,438)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

-

(1,913)

-

(4,464)

-

(69,171)

-

-

2,127

175,891

31,958
(214)
470,411

-

31,958
(214)

(218) 470,193
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Statements of Changes in Equity (Cont’d)
For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2011

Note

Share
Capital
RM’000

Share
Premium
RM’000

Warrant
Reserve
RM’000

Retained
Profits
RM’000

Total
RM’000

148,800

60,377

-

159,575

368,752

-

-

-

(16,995)

(16,995)

14,880

24,403

-

61,380
-

(1,888)
-

11,048
-

225,060

82,892

11,048

-

-

-

The Company
Balance at 1 January 2010
Loss after taxation for the financial year/
Total comprehensive expenses for the
financial year
Contributions by and distributions
to owners of the Company:
- Issuance of ordinary shares under
a private placement
- Issuance of ordinary shares under
rights issue
- Share issue expenses
- Dividend
Balance at 31 December 2010/
1 January 2011
Loss after taxation for the financial year/
Total comprehensive expenses for the
financial year

33

Contributions by and distributions
to owners of the Company:
- Issuance of ordinary shares
under a private placement
- Share issue expenses

22,506
-

Balance as at 31 December 2011

247,566

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

9,452
(214)
92,130

(4,464)

39,283
72,428
(1,888)
(4,464)

138,116

457,116

(35,235)

(35,235)

-

-

11,048

102,881

31,958
(214)
453,625
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Statements of Cash Flows
For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2011

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM/(FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation
Adjustments for:Allowance for impairment loss on receivables/
related parties/ subsidiaries
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on non-current asset classified
as held for sale
Impairment loss on refundable deposits
Interest expense
Property, plant and equipment written off
Accretion of refundable deposits
Dividend from subsidiaries
Dividend from an associate
Loss on dilution of interest in associate
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of non-current
asset classified as held for sale
Interest income
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange
Waiver of debts
Share of results in an associate

The Group
Restated
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
RM’000

(68,882)

(68,633)

(35,071)

35,715
34,717

5,020
36,227
2,982

48,851
453
-

4,552
2,154
16,485
95
(12,698)
3,116

9,380
21,651
9
(3,657)
-

11,022
3
(35,850)
(289)
-

1,331

(424)

2010
RM’000

(17,003)

5
445
18,667
(10,946)
(577)
-

2,311

1,509

(1,131)
(4,076)
(815)

(5,855)
(3,669)
(9,464)
(107)
(4,651)

(1,048)
-

(4,523)
-

Operating profit/(loss) before
working capital changes
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories
Decrease/(Increase) in receivables
Decrease in payables
Decrease in amount owing by related parties

10,563
2,938
44,294
(11,744)
9,873

(21,191)
(1,524)
(6,056)
(57,291)
988

(9,618)
1,399
(2,625)
-

(12,423)
13,365
(198)
-

CASH FROM/(FOR) OPERATIONS

55,924

(85,074)

(10,844)

(16,485)
(2,006)
227

(21,651)
(2,210)
4,682

(11,022)
-

(18,667)
3,219

37,660

(104,253)

(21,866)

(14,704)

Interest paid
Tax paid
Tax refund
NET CASH FROM/(FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements
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Note

The Group
Restated
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

CASH FLOWS (FOR)/FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in new subsidiaries
Repayment from/(Advances to) subsidiaries
Repayment from/(Advances to) related parties
Dividend received from subsidiaries
Dividend received from an associate
Refundable deposits refunded/(paid)
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of non-current asset
classified as held for sale
Net repayment from an associate
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Interest received
Withdrawal of fixed deposits

34

NET CASH (FOR)/FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

322
288
23,890

(4,661)
577
(42,535)

72,802
289
-

(55)
(47,621)
8,532
577
-

31,826

177,580

6,100

6,900

(134,370)
1,131
4,797

94,501
49,674
(190,955)
3,669
112,768

(4,613)
1,048
2,319

49,674
(6,448)
4,523
115,246

200,618

77,945

131,328

31,958
(214)
(16,077)
150,353
(129,377)
(76)
(30)
-

45
111,711
(1,888)
71,408
(270,000)
(46)
(219)
(4,464)

31,958
(214)
10,000
(95,044)
(58)
(6,539)
-

111,711
(1,888)
25,000
(270,000)
(27)
27,977
29
(4,464)

36,537

(93,453)

(59,897)

(111,662)

2,081

2,912

(3,818)

(72,116)

CASH FLOWS FROM/(FOR) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of shares
by a subsidiary to minority shareholders
Proceeds from issuance of shares
Share issue expenses
Security deposits paid
Drawdown of bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Repayment of hire purchase obligations
(Repayment to)/Advances from subsidiaries
(Repayment to)/Advances from related parties
Dividend paid
NET CASH FROM/(FOR) FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
EFFECTS OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE TRANSLATION

247

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

35

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements

(388)

4,962

-

-

37,943

35,419

21,318

16,356

40,271

37,943

17,500

21,318
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2011

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION
The Company is a public company limited by shares and is incorporated under the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. The
domicile of the Company is Malaysia. The registered office which is also the principal place of business, is at No. 6-8, Jalan
Seri Utara 1, Seri Utara, Batu 7, Jalan Ipoh, 68100 Kuala Lumpur.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of the directors
dated 30 April 2012.

2.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is principally an investment holding company and is also engaged in the provision of administrative and
management services to its subsidiaries. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are described in Note 5 to the financial
statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION
The financial statements of the Group are prepared under the historical cost convention and modified to include other bases
of valuation as disclosed in other sections under significant accounting policies, and in compliance with Financial Reporting
Standards (“FRS”) and the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.
(a) During the current financial year, the Group has adopted the following new accounting standards and interpretations
(including the consequential amendments):FRSs and IC Interpretations (Including the Consequential Amendments)
FRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Financial Reporting Standards
FRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
FRS 127 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Amendments to FRS 1 (Revised): Limited Exemption from Comparative FRS 7 Disclosures for First-time Adopters
Amendments to FRS 1 (Revised): Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters
Amendments to FRS 2: Scope of FRS 2 and FRS 3 (Revised)
Amendments to FRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to FRS 5: Plan to Sell the Controlling Interest in a Subsidiary
Amendments to FRS 7: Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
Amendments to FRS 138: Consequential Amendments Arising from FRS 3 (Revised)
IC Interpretation 4 Determining Whether An Arrangement Contains a Lease
IC Interpretation 12 Service Concession Arrangements
IC Interpretation 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation

PPB ar2011(2):Layout 1 5/25/12 12:50 PM Page 65

2011 Annual Report

65

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2011

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
(a) FRSs and IC Interpretations (Including the Consequential Amendments) (Cont’d)
IC Interpretation 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
IC Interpretation 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
Amendments to IC Interpretation 9: Scope of IC Interpretation 9 and FRS 3 (Revised)
Annual Improvement to FRSs (2010)
The adoption of the above accounting standards and interpretations (including the consequential amendments) did not
have any material impact on the Group’s financial statements, other than the following:(i)

FRS 3 (Revised) introduces significant changes to the accounting for business combinations, both at the acquisition
date and post acquisition, and requires greater use of fair values. In addition, all transaction costs, other than share
and debt issue costs, will be expensed as incurred. This revised standard has been applied prospectively during the
current financial year with no financial impact on the financial statements of the Group but may impact the accounting
of its future transactions or arrangements.

(ii) FRS 127 (Revised) requires accounting for changes in ownership interests by the group in a subsidiary, while
maintaining control, to be recognised as an equity transaction. When the group loses control of a subsidiary, any
interest retained in the former subsidiary will be measured at fair value with the gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss. The revised standard also requires all losses attributable to the non-controlling interests to be absorbed by the
non-controlling interests instead of by the parent. The Group will apply the major changes of FRS 127 (Revised)
prospectively and therefore there will be no financial impact on the financial statements of the Group for the current
financial year but may impact the accounting for future transactions or arrangements.
(iii) Amendments to FRS 7 expand the disclosure requirements in respect of fair value measurements and liquidity risk.
In particular, the amendments require additional disclosure of fair value measurements by level of a fair value
measurement hierarchy, as shown in Note 43(e) to the financial statements. Comparatives are not presented by virtue
of the exemption given in the amendments.
(iv) Annual Improvements to FRSs (2010) contain amendments to 11 accounting standards that result in accounting
changes for presentation, recognition or measurement purposes. These amendments have no material impact on
the financial statements of the Group upon their initial application.
Furthermore, the amendments to FRS 101 (Revised) also clarify that an entity may choose to present the analysis of
the items of other comprehensive income either in the statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the financial
statements. The Group has chosen to present the items of other comprehensive income in the statement of changes
in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2011

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
(b) The Group has not applied in advance the following accounting standards and interpretations (including the consequential
amendments) that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (MASB) but are not yet effective for
the current financial year:FRSs and IC Interpretations (Including the Consequential Amendments)

Effective date

FRS 9 Financial Instruments

1 January 2015

FRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

1 January 2013

FRS 11 Joint Arrangements

1 January 2013

FRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

1 January 2013

FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

1 January 2013

FRS 119 (Revised) Employee Benefits

1 January 2013

FRS 124 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

1 January 2012

FRS 127 (2011) Separate Financial Statements

1 January 2013

FRS 128 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

1 January 2013

Amendments to FRS 1 (Revised): Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters

1 January 2012

Amendments to FRS 7: Disclosures – Transfers of Financial Assets

1 January 2012

Amendments to FRS 7: Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

1 January 2013

Amendments to FRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of FRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

1 January 2015

Amendments to FRS 101 (Revised): Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income

1 July 2012

Amendments to FRS 112: Recovery of Underlying Assets

1 January 2012

Amendments to FRS 132: Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

1 January 2014

IC Interpretation 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

IC Interpretation 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments
IC Interpretation 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
Amendments to IC Interpretation 14: Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

Withdrawn on
19 November 2011
1 July 2011
1 January 2013
1 July 2011
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2011

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)
(b) FRSs and IC Interpretations (Including the Consequential Amendments)(Cont’d)
The Group’s next set of financial statements for the annual period beginning on 1 January 2012 will be prepared in
accordance with the Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”) issued by the MASB that will also comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”). As a result, the Group will not be adopting the above accounting
standards and interpretations (including the consequential amendments) that are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2012.
Following the issuance of MFRSs (equivalent to IFRSs) by the MASB on 19 November 2011, the Group will be adopting
the new accounting standards in the next financial year. The possible change of the accounting policies is expected to
have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group upon their initial application.

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the directors and management and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The estimates and judgements that affect the application of the Group’s accounting policies and
disclosures, and have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses are discussed below:(i)

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment
The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges for the property, plant and
equipment is based on commercial factors which could change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitors’ actions in response to the market conditions.
The Group anticipates that the residual value of its property, plant and equipment will be insignificant. As a result, the
residual values are not being taken into consideration for the computation of the depreciable amount.
Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development could impact the economic useful lives and
the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.

(ii) Income Taxes
There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination may be different from the
initial estimate. The Group recognises tax liabilities based on its understanding of the prevailing tax laws and estimates
of whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary course of business. Where the final outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recognised, such difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the year in which such determination is made.
(iii) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the value-in-use of the cashgenerating unit to which the asset is allocated, the management is required to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to apply a suitable discount rate in order to determine the
present value of those cash flows.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(a) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements (Cont’d)
(iv)

Write-down of Inventories
Reviews are made periodically by management on damaged, obsolete and slow-moving inventories. These reviews
require judgement and estimates. Possible changes in these estimates could result in revisions to the valuation of
inventories.

(v)

Operating Lease
The Group entered into several conditional Sale and Leaseback Agreements for the sales of the subsidiaries’ vessels
with third parties. Subsequently, these vessels were leased back by other subsidiaries from the third parties for lease
periods ranging from five (5) to ten (10) years commencing from the date of delivery of vessels or financing obtained,
with the option to buy back the vessels at the end of the primary lease term period. The directors are of the opinion
that the lease arrangements should be treated as an operating lease as presently the management has no intention
to buy back the vessels at the end of the primary lease term and the lease term does not constitute the major part
of the economic life of the vessels.

(vi)

Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables
An impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. Management
specifically reviews its loans and receivables financial assets and analyses historical bad debts, customer
concentrations, customer creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes in the customer payment terms
when making a judgement to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance for impairment losses. Where there is objective
evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of future cash flows are estimated based on historical loss experience
for assets with similar credit risk characteristics. If the expectation is different from the estimation, such difference
will impact the carrying value of receivables.

(vii) Impairment of Goodwill
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and at other times when such indicators exist. This requires management
to estimate the expected future cash flows of the cash-generating unit to which goodwill is allocated and to apply a
suitable discount rate in order to determine the present value of those cash flows. The future cash flows are most
sensitive to budgeted gross margins, growth rates estimated and discount rate used. If the expectation is different
from the estimation, such difference will impact the carrying value of goodwill.
(viii) Fair Value Estimates for Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities
The Group carries certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value, which requires extensive use of accounting
estimates and judgement. While significant components of fair value measurement were determine using verifiable
objective evidence, the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Group uses different valuation
methodologies. Any changes in fair value of these assets and liabilities would affect the results and/or equity.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(b) Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December 2011.
A subsidiary is defined as a company in which the parent company has the power, directly or indirectly, to exercise control
over its financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group up to the effective date on which
control ceases, as appropriate.
Intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Where necessary, adjustments
are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to ensure consistency of accounting policies with those of the Group.
Non-controlling interests are presented within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from
the Company’s shareholders’ equity, and are separately disclosed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Transactions with non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with owners and are recognised directly in
equity. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the parent and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.
All changes in the parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value
of consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the parent.
Upon loss of control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between:(i)

the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest in the former
subsidiary; and

(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the former subsidiary and any noncontrolling interests.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the former subsidiary are accounted for (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained profits) in the same manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of. The fair value of any investments retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under FRS 139/FRS 127.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(b) Basis of Consolidation (Cont’d)
Business combinations from 1 January 2011 onwards
Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. Under the acquisition method, the consideration
transferred for acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group at the acquisition date. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs, other than the costs to issue
debt or equity securities, are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.
In a business combination achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquiree are remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.
The Group has applied the FRS 3 (Revised) in accounting for business combinations from 1 January 2011 onwards. The
change in accounting policy has been applied prospectively in accordance with the transitional provisions provided by the
standard.
Business combinations before 1 January 2011
All subsidiaries are consolidated using the purchase method. At the date of acquisition, the fair values of the subsidiaries’
net assets are determined and these values are reflected in the consolidated financial statements. The cost of acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed,
and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to
the business combination.
Non-controlling interests are initially measured at their share of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the acquiree as at the date of acquisition.
(c) Goodwill
Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses, if any. The carrying value of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually. The impairment value of goodwill is recognised immediately in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
Under the acquisition method, any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in the business
combination, the amount of non-controlling interests recognised and the fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of
acquisition is recorded as goodwill.
Where the latter amount exceeds the former, after reassessment, the excess represents a bargain purchase gain and is
recognised as a gain in profit or loss.
Under the purchase method, goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the purchase consideration over the
Group’s share of the fair values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiaries at the date
of acquisition.
If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the fair values of the identifiable net assets of the subsidiaries exceeds the
cost of the business combinations, the excess is recognised as income immediately in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(d) Functional and Foreign Currencies
(i)

Functional and Presentation Currency
The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates, which is the functional currency.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and Balances
Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into the respective functional currencies on initial recognition, using
the exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are translated at the rates ruling as of that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated
using exchange rates that existed when the values were determined. All exchange differences are recognised in profit
or loss.
(iii) Foreign Operations
Assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated to Ringgit Malaysia at the rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Revenues and expenses of foreign operations are translated at exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the transactions. All exchange differences arising from translation are taken directly to other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under translation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising from the acquisition of foreign operations are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operations and are recorded in the functional currency of the foreign operations and translated
at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period.
(e) Financial Instruments
Financial instruments are recognised in the statements of financial position when the Group has become a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial instruments are classified as liabilities or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.
Interest, dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument classified as a liability are reported as an expense
or income. Distributions to holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged directly to equity.
Financial instruments are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to settle either on a
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
A financial instrument is recognised initially, at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial instrument not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument.
Financial instruments recognised in the statements of financial position are disclosed in the individual policy statement
associated with each item.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(e) Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
(i)

Financial Assets
On initial recognition, financial assets are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, heldto-maturity investments, loans and receivables financial assets, or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate.
•

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss when the financial asset is
either held for trading or is designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading (except for a derivative
that is a designated and effective hedging instrument).
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. Dividend income from this category of financial assets is recognised
in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

•

Held-to-maturity Investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any impairment loss, with
revenue recognised on an effective yield basis.

•

Loans and Receivables Financial Assets
Trade receivables and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as loans and receivables financial assets. Loans and receivables financial assets are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment loss. Interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

•

Available-for-sale Financial Assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated in this category or are
not classified in any of the other categories.
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are remeasured to their fair values at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the fair value reserve, with the exception of impairment losses. On derecognition,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the fair value reserve is reclassified from equity into profit
or loss.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.
Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less
impairment losses, if any.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(e) Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
(ii) Financial Liabilities
All financial liabilities are initially recorded at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method other than those categorised as fair value through
profit or loss.
Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are either held for trading or are designated
to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise. Derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
(iii) Equity Instruments
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from proceeds.
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities when approved for appropriation.
(iv) Warrants
Proceeds, net of issue costs, from the issuance of warrants are allocated in accordance with FRSIC Consensus 9 Accounting for Rights Issue with Free Warrants are credited to the warrant reserve which is non-distributable. The
warrant reserve is transferred to the share premium account upon the exercise of the warrants and the warrant reserve
in relation to the unexercised warrants at the expiry of the warrants will be transferred to retained earnings.
(v) Hedge Activities
The Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risks, including cross currency swap and interest rate swap.
The Group designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or firm
commitments (fair value hedges), hedges of highly probable forecast transactions or hedges of foreign currency risk
of firm commitments (cash flow hedges), or hedges of net investments in foreign operations.
•

Hedge accounting
The Group designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives, embedded derivatives and nonderivatives in respect of foreign currency risk, as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net
investments in foreign operations. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as
cash flow hedges.
At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether
the hedging instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(e) Financial Instruments (Cont’d)
(v) Hedge Activities (Cont’d)
•

Fair value hedges
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recognised in
profit or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are
attributable to the hedged risk. The change in the fair value of the hedging instrument and the change in the
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income relating to
the hedged item.
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument
expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The fair value
adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss
from that date.

•

Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Subsequently, the cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity
into profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the hedged forecast cash flows affect profit or loss.
If the hedge item is a non-financial asset or liability, the associated gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive
income is removed from equity and included in the initial amount of the asset or liability. However, loss recognised
in other comprehensive income that will not be recovered in one or more future periods is reclassified from equity
into profit or loss.
Hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or it no longer qualifies for hedge accounting.
Any gain or loss accumulated in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur,
the gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

•

Hedges of net instruments in foreign operations
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss
on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
The cumulative gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity into profit or
loss on the disposal of the foreign operation.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(f) Investments in Subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost in the statement of financial position of the Company, and are reviewed for
impairment at the end of the reporting period if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying values may
not be recoverable.
On the disposal of the investment in a subsidiary, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the investment is recognised in profit or loss.
(g) Investment in an Associate
An associate is an entity in which the Group and the Company have a long-term equity interest and where it exercises
significant influence over the financial and operating policies.
The investment in an associate is accounted for under the equity method, based on the financial statements of the
associate made up to 31 December 2011. The Group‘s share of the post acquisition profits of the associate is included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and the Group‘s interest in the associate is carried in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost plus the Group‘s share of the post-acquisition retained profits and
other reserves.
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the Group‘s interest
in the associate. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless cost cannot be recovered.
On the disposal of the investments in associates, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the investments is recognised in profit or loss.
(h) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation and impairment losses, if
any.
Depreciation is calculated under the straight-line method to write off the depreciable amount of the assets over their
estimated useful lives. Depreciation of an asset does not cease when the asset becomes idle or is retired from active use
unless the asset is fully depreciated. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are:Vessels
Vessel equipment
Dry docking
Leasehold buildings
Plant and machinery
Cabin, field and workshop equipment
Motor vehicles
Office equipment, furniture and fittings
Others

4% - 7%
4% - 10%
20%
2%
10%
10% - 20%
20%
10% - 20%
10% - 50%
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(h) Property, Plant and Equipment (Cont’d)
Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated.
Capital work-in-progress represents assets under construction, and which are not ready for commercial use at the end of
reporting period. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, and is transferred to the relevant category of assets and
depreciated accordingly when the assets are completed and ready for commercial use. Cost of capital work-in-progress
includes direct costs, related expenditure and interest cost on borrowings taken to finance the construction or acquisition
of the assets to the date that the assets are completed and put into use.
Dry docking costs are in respect of the cost of major repairs and modifications incurred on the vessels which enhance the
useful lives of the vessels.
The depreciation method, useful life and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of the property, plant and equipment.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when the cost is incurred and it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the
Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of parts that are replaced is derecognised.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Cost also comprises the
initial estimate of dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located for which the Group is
obligated to incur when the asset is acquired, if applicable.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset is recognised in profit or loss.
(i) Impairment
(i)

Impairment of Financial Assets
All financial assets (other than those categorised at fair value through profit or loss), are assessed at the end of each
reporting period whether there is any objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events having an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset. For an equity instrument, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
An impairment loss in respect of held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables financial assets is recognised
in profit or loss and is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
An impairment loss in respect of available-for-sale financial assets is recognised in profit or loss and is measured as
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any
impairment loss previously recognised in the fair value reserve. In addition, the cumulative loss recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under fair value reserve, is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.
With the exception of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had
the impairment not been recognised. In respect of available-for-sale equity instruments, impairment losses previously
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss made is recognised in other comprehensive income.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(i) Impairment (Cont’d)
(ii) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets
The carrying values of assets, other than those to which FRS 136 - Impairment of Assets does not apply, are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period for impairment when there is an indication that the assets might be impaired.
Impairment is measured by comparing the carrying values of the assets with their recoverable amounts. The
recoverable amount of the assets is the higher of the assets’ fair value less costs to sell and their value-in-use, which
is measured by reference to discounted future cash flow.
An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
In respect of assets other than goodwill, and when there is a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount, a subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of an asset is treated as a reversal of the
previous impairment loss and is recognised to the extent of the carrying amount of the asset that would have been
determined (net of amortisation and depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised. The reversal is recognised
in profit or loss immediately.
(j) Operating Leases
Leases of assets where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under the operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor, if any)
are recognised in profit or loss on the straight-line method over the lease period. When an operating lease is terminated
before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as
an expense in the period in which termination takes place.
(k) Assets under Hire Purchase
Assets acquired under hire purchase are capitalised in the financial statements and are depreciated in accordance with
the policy set out in Note 4(h) above. Each hire purchase payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges
so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. Finance charges are recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the respective hire purchase agreements.
(l) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in-first-out basis, and
comprises the purchase price and incidentals incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
Where necessary, due allowance is made for all obsolete, damaged and slow-moving items.
(m) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of past events, when it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate
of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is the present value of the estimated
expenditure required to settle the obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(n) Income Taxes
Income tax for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year and is measured
using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences other than those that arise from goodwill or
excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the business combination costs or from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which is not a
business combination and at the time of the transaction, affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. The carrying amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority.
Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transactions either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity and deferred
tax arising from a business combination is included in the resulting goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the business combination costs.
(o) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposits, bank overdrafts and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net
of pledged deposits.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(p) Employee Benefits
(i)

Short-term Benefits
Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group.

(ii) Defined Contribution Plans
The Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in profit or loss in the period to which they
relate. Once the contributions have been paid, the Group has no further liability in respect of the defined contribution
plans.
(q) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs, directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of property, plant and equipment are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are ready for their intended use or sale. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended during extended periods in which active development is interrupted.
All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss as expenses in the period in which they incurred.
(r) Contingent Liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a present
obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.
A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a liability/provision.
(s) Related Parties
A party is related to an entity if:(i)

directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party:•
controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, the entity (this includes parents, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries);
•
has an interest in the entity that gives it significant influence over the entity; or
•
has joint control over the entity;
(ii) the party is an associate of the entity;
(iii) the party is a joint venture in which the entity is a venturer;
(iv) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the entity or its parent;
(v) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (i) or (iv);
(vi) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by, or for which significant voting
power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (iv) or (v); or
(vii) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of the entity, or of any entity that is a related
party of the entity.
Close members of the family of an individual are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)
(t) Operating Segments
An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues
and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group’s other components.
An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the chief operating decision maker to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information
is available.
(u) Revenue and Other Income
(i)

Chartered Vessel Income
Chartered vessel income is recognised upon rendering of services and when the outcome of the transaction can be
estimated reliably. In the event the outcome of the transaction could not be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
to the extent of the expenses incurred that are recoverable.

(ii) Dividend Income
Dividend income from investment is recognised when the right to receive dividend payment is established.
(iii) Rental Income
Rental income is recognised on an accrual basis.
(iv) Interest Income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, based on the effective yield on the investment. Interest income on
late payment is recognised on a receipt basis.
(v) Non-current Assets Held for Sale
Non-current assets that are expected to be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use are
classified as held for sale. Upon classification as held for sale, non-current assets or components of a disposal group are
not depreciated and are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell. Any differences
are recognised in profit or loss.
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5.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Unquoted shares, at cost:
- in Malaysia
- outside Malaysia

285,574
21,897

285,574
21,897

307,471

307,471

Accumulated impairment losses:
At 1 January
Addition

(10)
(48,851)

(10)
-

At 31 December

(48,861)

(10)

258,610

307,461

The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:-

Name of Company

Country of
incorporation

Effective
Equity Interest
2011
2010
%
%

Principal Activities

Intra Oil Services Berhad

Malaysia

100

100

Provision of marine support services for the
oil and gas industry.

Ampangship Marine Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100

100

Provision of marine support services for the
oil and gas industry.

The Republic of
Singapore

100

100

Provision of marine support services for the
oil and gas industry.

Petra Offshore Limited

Federal Territory of
Labuan

100

100

Provision of leasing business activities in
Labuan.

Perdana Mercury Limited

The Republic of
the Marshall Islands

100

100

Provision of marine support services for the
oil and gas industry.

Perdana Venus Limited

The Republic of
the Marshall Islands

100

100

Provision of marine support services for the
oil and gas industry.

Petra Marine Australia
Pty. Ltd.

The Commonwealth of
Australia

55

55

Provision of marine support services for the
oil and gas industry.

Perdana Jupiter Limited

Federal Territory of
Labuan

100

100

Provision of leasing business activities in
Labuan.

Perdana Neptune Limited

Federal Territory of
Labuan

100

100

Provision of leasing business activities in
Labuan.

Perdana Marine Offshore
Pte. Ltd. *
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONT’D)

Name of Company

Country of
incorporation

Effective
Equity Interest
2011
2010
%
%

Principal Activities

Perdana Pluto Limited ^

Federal Territory of
Labuan

100 **

100

Provision of leasing business activities in
Labuan.

Odin Explorer Navigation
Limited

The British Virgin
Islands

100

100

Dormant.

Geoseas Technologies
Limited

The British Virgin
Islands

51

51

Dormant.

Petra Teknik Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100

100

Dormant.

Petra Asia Limited

Federal Territory of
Labuan

100

100

Dormant.

Perdana Saturn Limited*

Federal Territory of
Labuan

100

100

Dormant.

Malaysia

55

55

Dormant.

Perdana Nautika Sdn. Bhd.

Interest held through Intra Oil Services Berhad
Osam Marine Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100

100

Dormant

Asiaway Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100

100

Dormant

Interest held through Osam Marine Sdn. Bhd.
Malawi Marine Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100

100

Dormant.

Kovan Marine Sdn. Bhd.

Malaysia

100

100

Dormant.

*

Not audited by Messrs. Crowe Horwath.

**

Interests held through Perdana Marine Offshore Pte. Ltd.

^

On 6 July 2011, the Company disposed of its investment of 1 ordinary share of USD1.00 in its wholly-owned Federal
Territory of Labuan incorporated subsidiary, Perdana Pluto Limited (“PPL”), to its wholly-owned Singapore incorporated
subsidiary, Perdana Marine Offshore Pte. Ltd. The effective interest of the Company in PPL remained status quo.

The Company assessed the recoverable amount of investments in subsidiaries and determined that an impairment loss should
be recognised as the recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount. The recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is determined using the fair value less costs to sell approach, and this is derived from the net assets position of the
respective subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting period.
The net assets position of the subsidiaries as at the end of the current reporting period has declined in the current financial
year which was attributed to the continuing losses incurred.
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6.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Note
Quoted shares in Malaysia, at cost
Share of post acquisition profits

Market value of quoted shares

The Group
Restated
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

19,233
70,862

19,233
73,451

19,233
-

19,233
-

90,095

92,684

19,233

19,233

65,778

89,435

65,778

89,435

Share of results in an associate is based on the unaudited financial statements of the associate.
The details of the associate are as follows:-

Name of Company

Country of
incorporation

Petra Energy Berhad

Malaysia

Effective
Equity Interest
2011
2010
%
%
26.90

29.59

Principal Activities

Investment holding.

On 27 October 2011, Petra Energy Berhad (“PEB”) increased its issued and paid-up share capital from 195,000,000 to
214,500,000 ordinary shares by the allotment of 19,500,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each at an issue price of RM0.91
per share. The Company did not subscribe for the new ordinary shares and as a result, its equity interest was diluted from
29.59% to 26.90%, which resulted in a loss on dilution of approximately RM3,116,000 in profit or loss.
The summarised unaudited financial information of the associate is as follows:-

2011
RM’000

Restated
2010
RM’000

Assets and liabilities
Non-current assets
Current assets

426,506
373,754

446,989
353,521

Total assets

800,260

800,510

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities

325,764
133,173

279,497
199,591

Total liabilities

458,937

479,088

Result
Revenue
Net profit for the financial year

650,403
3,308

633,935
17,090
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7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
At
1.1.2011
RM’000

Currency Reclassified
Translation As Held For Depreciation Impairment
At
Difference Sale (Note 16)
Charge
Loss
31.12.2011
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

Written
Additions Disposals
Off
Cancellation Transfers
RM’000
RM’000 RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

The Group
Net Book Value
Vessels
Vessel equipment
Dry docking
Leasehold buildings
Cabin, field
and workshop
equipment
Motor vehicles
Office equipment,
furniture and
fittings
Capital work-inprogress
Others

*

253,430
22,685
25,209
1,665

385
849
994
-

85
465

-

2,400

(22,570)
(1,240)
(709)
-

-

184,562
(1,001)*
-

14,805
467
291
-

(12,531)
(4,298)
-

(21,826)
(2,572)
(9,970)
(37)

(26,712)
(8,005)
-

369,543
20,189
2,511
1,628

-

(1)
-

-

-

1
2

-

(15)
(113)

-

70
354

388

(6)

(92)

-

-

2

-

(792)

-

1,900

94,161
834

133,270
104

(8,411)
-

(2)

-

(390)

-

31,330
550

400,934

135,990

(32,936)

(95)

(619)^ (184,562)
(1,620)

(2,509)
4

-

13,063

(16,829)

(35,715)

(34,717)

428,075

The cancellation refers to the discount given by the supplier in respect of dry docking expenses capitalised in the previous
financial year.
At
1.1.2010
RM’000

Additions Disposals
RM’000
RM’000

Written
Off
Cancellation Transfers
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

Currency
Translation
Difference
RM’000

Depreciation Impairment
At
Charge
Loss
31.12.2010
RM’000
RM’000
RM’000

The Group
Net Book Value
Vessels
Vessel equipment
Dry docking
Leasehold buildings
Cabin, field and
workshop equipment
Motor vehicles
Office equipment, furniture
and fittings
Capital work-in-progress
Others

^

220,995
12,230
38,615
1,702

3,151
3,794
6,757
-

(138,510)
-

112
113

430

2,835
183,094
1,002

306
176,621
286

(5)
(8,256)
-

460,698

191,345

(146,771)

-

-

-

200,785
10,795
-

(13,847)
(1,961)
(3,583)
-

(19,144)
(2,173)
(13,598)
(37)

(9)
-

-

-

(2)

(18)
(76)

-

85
465

(30,385)^ (211,580)
-

(3)
(15,333)
(6)

(733)
(448)

-

2,400
94,161
834

(30,385)

(34,735)

(36,227)

(9)

-

The Group cancelled a vessel under construction amounting to RM618,773 (2010 - RM30,385,261).

(2,982)
-

(2,982)

253,430
22,685
25,209
1,665

400,934
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7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)

The Group

At
Cost
RM’000

Accumulated
Depreciation
RM’000

Accumulated
Impairment
Loss
RM’000

Net Book
Value
RM’000

At 31.12.2011
Vessels
Vessel equipment
Dry docking
Leasehold buildings
Plant and machinery
Cabin, field and workshop equipment
Motor vehicles
Office equipment, furniture and fittings
Capital work-in-progress
Others

477,219
25,720
50,036
1,860
10
148
747
4,426
31,330
3,331

(80,964)
(5,531)
(36,538)
(232)
(10)
(78)
(393)
(2,526)
(2,781)

(26,712)
(10,987)
-

369,543
20,189
2,511
1,628
70
354
1,900
31,330
550

594,827

(129,053)

(37,699)

428,075

337,729
25,833
67,398
1,860
10
148
745
4,161
94,161
3,215

(84,299)
(3,148)
(39,207)
(195)
(10)
(63)
(280)
(1,761)
(2,381)

(2,982)
-

253,430
22,685
25,209
1,665
85
465
2,400
94,161
834

535,260

(131,344)

(2,982)

400,934

At 31.12.2010
Vessels
Vessel equipment
Dry docking
Leasehold buildings
Plant and machinery
Cabin, field and workshop equipment
Motor vehicles
Office equipment, furniture and fittings
Capital work-in-progress
Others
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7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)
At
1.1.2011
RM’000

Additions
RM’000

Written
Off
RM’000

Disposal
RM’000

Depreciation
Charge
RM’000

At
31.12.2011
RM’000

The Company
Net Book Value
Leasehold buildings
Motor vehicle
Office equipment, furniture and fittings
Capital work-in-progress
Others

1,665
380
181
3,864
431

16
4,547
50

(8,411)
-

(3)

(37)
(86)
(86)
(244)

1,628
294
111
234

6,521

4,613

(8,411)

(3)

(453)

2,267

At
1.1.2010
RM’000

Additions
RM’000

Depreciation
At
Charge
31.12.2010
RM’000
RM’000

1,702
188
6,045
602

430
76
6,228
104

(8,409)
-

(37)
(50)
(83)
(275)

1,665
380
181
3,864
431

8,537

6,838

(8,409)

(445)

6,521

Disposal
RM’000

Net Book Value
Leasehold buildings
Motor vehicle
Office equipment, furniture and fittings
Capital work-in-progress
Others

At
Cost
RM’000

Accumulated
Depreciation
RM’000

Net Book
Value
RM’000

At 31.12.2011
Leasehold buildings
Motor vehicle
Office equipment, furniture and fittings
Others

1,860
430
570
1,802

(232)
(136)
(459)
(1,568)

1,628
294
111
234

4,662

(2,395)

2,267
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7.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D)
At
Cost
RM’000

Accumulated
Depreciation
RM’000

Net Book
Value
RM’000

The Company
At 31.12.2010
Leasehold buildings
Motor vehicle
Office equipment, furniture and fittings
Capital work-in-progress
Others

1,860
430
554
3,864
1,755

(195)
(50)
(373)
(1,324)

1,665
380
181
3,864
431

8,463

(1,942)

6,521

Capital work-in-progress are in respect of vessels under construction and cranes not ready for commercial use at the end of
the reporting period.
Included in the net book value of property, plant and equipment at the end of the reporting period are the following assets
acquired under hire purchase terms:The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Motor vehicles

354

465

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
294

380

In the previous financial year, the interest expense capitalised under capital work-in-progress amounted to RM658,160.
The net book value of property, plant and equipment at the end of the reporting period pledged as security for the issuance of
bonds and medium term notes by the Group was as follows:The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Vessels, including dry docking expenses capitalised

119,348

167,423
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8.

AMOUNTS OWING BY/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

Note
Amount owing by:Non-current
Quasi loan
Current
Non-trade
Allowance for impairment losses:
- at 1 January
- addition
- waiver of debts

(a)

235,111

400,949

(b)

93,307

4,333

(4,062)
4,062

(4,057)
(5)
-

- at 31 December

Amount owing to:Current
Non-trade

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

-

(b)

(4,062)

93,307

271

328,418

401,220

(81,450)

(123,839)

(a) The settlement of the non-current amount owing by subsidiaries is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable
future. As this amount is, in substance, a part of the Company’s net investment in the subsidiaries, it is stated at cost less
impairment losses, if any.
(b) The amounts owing by/(to) the subsidiaries are non-trade in nature, interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand.
The amounts are to be settled in cash.
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9.

REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

Note
Non-current:Refundable deposits - A
Refundable deposits - B

(a)
(b)

81,429
14,295

90,930
-

95,724

90,930

(a) The deposits are placed with vessel owners for the long lease of vessels for periods ranging from five (5) to ten (10) years.
(b) The deposits are pledged to a licensed bank as security for term loan facilities granted to the Group.
The Group designated its non-current refundable deposits as loans and receivables financial assets, measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

10. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Goodwill

27,507

27,507

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing to the Group’s cash-generating unit (“CGU”).
At the end of the reporting period, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of the goodwill and determined that the goodwill
was not impaired.
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on the value-in-use calculations. These calculations use post-tax cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a period of five (5) to ten (10) years.
The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculations are as follows:2011
Gross margin
Growth rate
Discount rate

10% - 66%
1% - 10%
5.58% - 10.39%

2010
6% - 44%
1%
11%

Management determined the budgeted gross margin based on past performance and its expectations of market development.
The growth rate used is based on the past years’ achievement and the expected contracts to be secured. The discount rates
used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.
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11. DEFERRED TAX ASSET
The Group/The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
At 1 January/31 December

46

46

The deferred tax asset comprises:The Group/The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Excess of depreciation over capital allowances

46

46

12. INVENTORIES
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Consumables, at cost

3,937

6,908

Inventories represent fuel, various oils, spare parts and calling cards. None of the inventories is carried at net realisable value.

13. RECEIVABLES
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

Trade receivables
Allowance for impairment losses

37,050
(297)

46,316
(297)

-

-

Net trade receivables

36,753

46,019

-

-

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments
Allowance for impairment losses:
- at 1 January
- addition

20,785

55,166

341

1,740

(1,892)
-

(1,572)
(320)

-

-

- at 31 December

(1,892)

(1,892)

-

-

Net other receivables, deposits and prepayments

18,893

53,274

341

1,740

55,646

99,293

341

1,740

The Group’s normal trade credit terms range from 30 to 90 days. Other credit terms are assessed and approved on a caseby-case basis.
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14. AMOUNTS OWING BY/(TO) RELATED PARTIES
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Amount owing by:Trade balance
Allowance for impairment losses:
- at 1 January
- addition
- at 31 December

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

24,247

30,798

-

-

(1,899)
-

(1,899)

-

-

(1,899)

(1,899)

-

-

22,348

28,899

-

-

259

259

Non-trade balance
Allowance for impairment losses:
- at 1 January
- addition

7,026

10,516

(2,801)
-

(2,801)

-

-

- at 31 December

(2,801)

(2,801)

-

-

4,225

7,715

259

259

26,573

36,614

259

259

(32)

(32)

Amount owing to:Non-trade balance

(33)

(33)

The normal credit terms for trade amounts range from 60 to 90 days.
The non-trade amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The amounts owing are to be settled in cash.
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15. FIXED DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED BANKS
The fixed deposits pledged to banks for banking facilities granted to the Group and the Company are as follows:The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Fixed deposits pledged as security (Note 35)

26,741

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

31,538

26,741

29,060

The effective interest rates of the fixed deposits at the end of the reporting period were as follows:The Group

Fixed deposits with licensed banks

2011
%

2010
%

0.29 to 2.85

0.02 to 2.75

The Company
2011
2010
%
%
2.20 to 2.85

1.95 to 2.65

The fixed deposits have maturity periods ranging from 4 days to 60 days (2010 - 4 days to 60 days).

16. NON-CURRENT ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Reclassified from property, plant and equipment, at carrying amount (Note 7):Vessels
Dry docking

12,531
4,298

-

Impairment loss
Translation differences

16,829
(4,552)
(22)

-

12,255

-

On 13 December 2011, the Company entered into a Memorandum of Agreement (“MOA”) to dispose of two of its vessels. As
at the end of the reporting period, the Company reclassified the vessels to non-current asset held for sale as the directors are
of the opinion that the sale of the vessels is highly probable within the next financial year from the end of the reporting period.

PPB ar2011(2):Layout 1 5/25/12 12:50 PM Page 93

2011 Annual Report

93

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2011

17. SHARE CAPITAL
The Company
2011
2010
2011
Number of Shares (’000)
RM’000

2010
RM’000

Ordinary Shares Of RM0.50 Each:Authorised

1,000,000

1,000,000

500,000

500,000

Issued And Fully Paid-Up
At 1 January
Private placement
Rights issue

450,120
45,012
-

297,600
29,760
122,760

225,060
22,506
-

148,800
14,880
61,380

At 31 December

495,132

450,120

247,566

225,060

On 25 November 2011, the Company increased its issued and paid-up share capital from RM225,060,000 to RM247,566,000
by the issuance of 45,012,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each at an issue price of RM0.71 per share for cash for the
purpose of repayment of borrowings and working capital use pursuant to the Company’s private placement. The new shares
were listed and quoted on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad on 8 December 2011.
The new ordinary shares issued during the financial year ranked pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of
the Company.
In the previous financial year, the Company increased its issued and paid-up share capital from RM148,800,000 to
RM225,060,000 by:(i)

an issuance of 29,760,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each for cash for the purpose of payment of charter deposits
and working capital use pursuant to the Company’s private placement at a subscription price of RM1.32 per share on 30
June 2010. The new shares were listed and quoted on the Bursa Securities on 2 July 2010; and

(ii) an issuance of 122,760,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.50 each for cash for the purpose of repayment of borrowings
and working capital use pursuant to the Company’s renounceable rights issue with free detachable warrants (“Rights
Issue”) on the basis of three (3) rights shares (“Rights Shares”) for every eight (8) existing ordinary shares of RM0.50
each held in the Company together with 61,379,785 free detachable warrants (“Warrants”) on the basis of one (1) Warrant
for every two (2) Rights Shares subscribed at an issue price of RM0.59 per Right Share on 27 October 2010. The new
shares were listed and quoted on the Bursa Securities on 1 November 2010.
The ordinary shares issued in the previous financial year ranked pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of
the Company.
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18. RESERVES
The Group
Restated
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Non-distributable:Share premium
Warrant reserve (Note 19)
Foreign exchange translation reserve
Cash flow hedge reserve
Other capital reserve

Distributable:Retained profits

The Company
2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

92,130
11,048
(56,438)
(1,913)
2,127

82,892
11,048
(56,579)
(1,311)
2,127

92,130
11,048
-

82,892
11,048
-

46,954

38,177

103,178

93,940

175,891

245,062

102,881

138,116

222,845

283,239

206,059

232,056

(a) Share Premium
The share premium is not distributable by way of cash dividends and may be utilised in the manner set out in Section
60(3) of the Companies Act 1965.
(b) Translation Reserve
The foreign exchange translation reserve arose from the translation of the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries
and is not distributable by way of dividends.
(c) Cash Flow Hedge Reserve
This reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative gains and losses on the hedging instrument deemed
effective in a cash flow hedge.
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
At 1 January
Loss on cash flow hedge
Reclassify to profit or loss - other expenses

(1,311)
(602)
-

(3,070)
1,759

At 31 December

(1,913)

(1,311)
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18. RESERVES (CONT’D)
(d) Retained Profits
Subject to the agreement of the tax authorities, at the end of the reporting period, the Company has:(a) tax-exempt income of approximately RM124,399,017 (2010 - RM88,260,517) available for the purpose of paying taxexempt dividends; and
(b) tax credits under Section 108 of the Income Tax Act 1967 to frank the payment of dividends of approximately
RM27,096,000 (2010 - RM27,096,000) out of its retained profits.
At the end of the reporting period, the Company has not elected for the single tier tax system. When the tax credit balance
is fully utilised, or by 31 December 2013 at the latest, the Company will automatically move to the single tier tax system.
Under the single tier tax system, tax on the Company’s profits is a final tax, and dividends distributed to the shareholders
will be exempted from tax.
(e) Capital Redemption Reserve
This reserve represents the redemption of the redeemable non-cumulative non-voting preference shares by a subsidiary
incorporated in the Federal Territory of Labuan.
Following the amendment to the Labuan Companies Act 1990 of not having par value shares and no minimum share
capital requirements during the financial year, this reserve has been reclassified to other capital reserve.

19. WARRANT RESERVE
On 27 October 2010, the Company issued 61,379,785 free Warrants pursuant to the Rights Issue as disclosed in Note 17(ii)
to the financial statements. Pursuant to FRSIC Consensus 9 - Accounting for Rights Issue with Free Warrants, the proceeds
from the Rights Issues (net of issue costs) have been allocated between the new ordinary shares issued and the Warrants
based on their fair values at the date of issue.
The salient terms of the Warrants 2010/2015 are as follows:(a) Each Warrant entitles the registered holder to subscribe for one (1) new ordinary share of RM0.50 each in the Company
at any time on or before the maturity date, 26 October 2015, falling five (5) years from the date of issue of the Warrants.
Unexercised Warrants after the exercise period will thereafter lapse and cease to be valid;
(b) The exercise price of the Warrants is fixed at RM1.00 per Warrant;
(c) The new ordinary shares to be issued upon the exercise of the Warrants shall rank pari passu in all respects with the
existing ordinary shares of the Company; and
(d) The Warrants were listed and quoted on the Main Market of Bursa Securities on 1 November 2010.
The movements of the Warrants during the financial year are as follows:Entitlement for ordinary shares of RM0.50 each
At
At
1.1.2011
Exercised
Cancelled 31.12.2011
Number of unexercised Warrants

61,379,785

-

-

61,379,785
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20. DEFERRED TAXATION
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
At 1 January
Translation differences
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 31)
At 31 December

4,048
(1,541)

2,060
(2)
1,990

2,507

4,048

The deferred tax liability is attributable to the following:The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Excess of capital allowances over depreciation

2,507

4,048

21. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Hire purchase payables (Note 22)
Term loans (Note 23)

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

269
174,584

348
145,740

244
34,803

305
104,803

174,853

146,088

35,047

105,108

22. HIRE PURCHASE PAYABLES
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

Minimum hire purchase payments:
- not later than one year
- later than one year and not later than five years
- later than five years

99
297
-

98
357
38

76
269
-

77
307
38

Less: Future finance charges

396
(46)

493
(69)

345
(40)

422
(59)

Present value of hire purchase payables

350

424

305

363
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22. HIRE PURCHASE PAYABLES (CONT’D)
The net hire purchase payables are repayable as follows:The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Current:
- not later than one year (Note 26)

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

81

76

61

58

Non-current:
- later than one year and not later than five years
- later than five years

269
-

311
37

244
-

268
37

Total non-current portion (Note 21)

269

348

244

305

350

424

305

363

The hire purchase payables at the end of the reporting date bore effective interest rates ranging from 5.44% to 5.64%
(2010 - 3.99% to 5.64%) per annum.

23. TERM LOANS
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

Current portion:
- repayable within one year (Note 26)

89,458

98,732

69,976

95,020

Non-current portion:
- repayable between one to two years
- repayable between two to five years

61,902
112,682

79,800
65,940

34,803
-

69,933
34,870

Total non-current portion (Note 21)

174,584

145,740

34,803

104,803

264,042

244,472

104,779

199,823
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23. TERM LOANS (CONT’D)
(a) Secured Serial Bonds
On 30 March 2006, the Company issued RM400,000,000 nominal value secured serial bonds (“Bonds”). The Bonds were
issued in nine (9) series, as follows:-

Series

A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H
I

Nominal Value
RM’000
120,000
35,000
35,000
35,000
35,000
35,000
35,000
35,000
35,000

Maturity Date

30 March 2009
30 September 2009
30 March 2010
30 September 2010
30 March 2011
30 September 2011
30 March 2012
28 September 2012
29 March 2013

Coupon Rate
Per Annum

6.24%
5.75%
5.90%
6.10%
6.30%
6.55%
6.65%
6.75%
6.85%

The coupon payment is due semi-annually in arrears.
(b) Medium Term Notes
On 3 November 2006, the Company issued RM50,000,000 nominal value medium term notes (“MTNs“). The issuance of
MTNs was made in four (4) series, as follows:-

Series

A
B
C
D

Nominal Value
RM’000
15,000
10,000
15,000
10,000

Maturity Date

3 May 2010
3 November 2010
3 May 2011
3 November 2011

The coupon payment is due semi-annually in arrears.
Both the Bonds and MTNs are secured by:(i)

a fixed charge over the shares of certain subsidiaries and an associate;

(ii) an assignment and charge over the revenue generated by certain vessels of the Group;
(iii) an assignment and charge over the insurance proceeds of certain vessels of the Group;
(iv) a fixed charge over certain vessels of the Group; and
(v) various undertakings by the Company.
The MTNs have been fully repaid during the financial year.

Coupon Rate
Per Annum

5.75%
5.90%
6.10%
6.30%

PPB ar2011(2):Layout 1 5/25/12 12:50 PM Page 99

99

2011 Annual Report

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2011

23. TERM LOANS (CONT’D)
(c) Commodity Murabahah Term Financing-i
On 18 March 2010, a subsidiary accepted a Commodity Murabahah Term Financing facility denominated in United States
Dollar (USD) with a nominal value of USD14,480,000 (equivalent to RM46,408,400).
This foreign currency term loan is being hedged by a cross-currency interest rate swap as disclosed in Note 24 to the
financial statements and is repayable by eighteen (18) quarterly installments ranging from RM961,500 to RM10,191,900
commencing January 2011.
The effective interest rate of the foreign currency term loan at the end of the reporting period was 5.58% (2010 - 5.58%)
per annum.
The foreign currency term loan is secured by a corporate guarantee provided by the Company.
(d) Term Loans
Details of term loans outstanding at the end of the reporting period are as follows:-

Term loan I
Term loan II

Number Of
Quarterly
Instalments

Date Of
Commencement
Of Repayment

28
20

August 2011
October 2011

The Group
Amount Outstanding
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
49,347
68,050

-

117,397

-

Term loan I
Term loan I is repayable by quarterly instalments of RM1,897,975 or USD598,259 commencing August 2011. The term
loan is secured by:
(i)

a fixed charge over certain vessel of the Group;

(ii) a corporate guarantee of the Company;
(iii) an assignment and charge over the insurance proceeds and revenue generated by the vessel of a subsidiary; and
(iv) a security deposit of USD3.0 million placed in the Retention Account.
The term loan bears an interest rate of LIBOR plus 4.35% per annum.
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23. TERM LOANS (CONT’D)
(d) Term Loans (Cont’d)
Term loan II
Term loan II is repayable by quarterly instalments ranging from RM1,454,062 or USD458,333 to RM1,744,875 or
USD550,000 commencing October 2011. The term loan is secured by:
(i)

a fixed charge over certain vessel of the Group;

(ii) a fixed charge over the shares of a subsidiary;
(iii) a corporate guarantee from the Company;
(iv) an assignment and charge over the insurance proceeds and revenue generated by the vessel of a subsidiary; and
(v) a security deposit of USD2.20 million placed in the Retention Account.
The term loan bears an interest rate of LIBOR plus 4.00% per annum.

24. Derivative Liability
On 18 March 2010, the Group entered into a USD-MYR cross-currency interest rate swap to hedge the cash flow and interest
rate risks of its foreign currency floating rate term loan as mentioned in Note 23(c) to the financial statements. The crosscurrency interest rate swap has been designated as a cash flow hedge and was assessed to be highly effective.
The cross-currency interest rate swap is used to hedge the Group’s exposure to changes in the functional currency equivalent
cash flows and interest rate of the foreign currency term loan. This swap entitles the Group to receive USD LIBOR and USD
equivalent of the principal whereby the repayments are made in Ringgit Malaysia based on an agreed exchange rate of 3.205.
The swap also entitles the Group to receive a floating interest equal to a 3-month USD LIBOR+2.00% per annum and pays a
fixed rate of 5.58% per annum every 3 months.
The swap has the same maturity terms as that of the foreign currency term loan.
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25. PAYABLES
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals:
- other payables
- accruals
- dividend payable

The payables are repayable as follows:
- non-current
- current

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

34,110

36,186

-

-

12,805
12,969
-

13,167
17,372
7

933
5,229
-

1,847
6,933
7

25,774

30,546

6,162

8,787

59,884

66,732

6,162

8,787

260
59,624

260
66,472

214
5,948

214
8,573

59,884

66,732

6,162

8,787

The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group range from 30 to 90 days.

26. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Hire purchase payables (Note 22)
Term loans (Note 23)
Revolving credit (Note 27)

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

81
89,458
10,000

76
98,732
-

61
69,976
10,000

58
95,020
-

99,539

98,808

80,037

95,078

27. REVOLVING CREDIT
The revolving credit bore an interest rate of 6.34% (2010 - Nil) per annum.

28. NET ASSETS PER ORDINARY SHARE
The net assets per ordinary share is calculated based on the net assets value of RM470,411,000 (2010 - RM508,299,000)
divided by the number of ordinary shares in issue at the end of the reporting period of 495,132,000 (2010 - 450,120,000)
shares.

PPB ar2011(2):Layout 1 5/25/12 12:50 PM Page 102

102

Perdana Petroleum Berhad

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2011

29. REVENUE
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Chartered vessel income
Dividend income
Rental income

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

255,864
-

254,887
-

36,139
408

11,523
158

255,864

254,887

36,547

11,681

30. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Note

The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

Loss before taxation is arrived at after
charging/(crediting):Audit fee:
- current financial year
- underprovision in the previous financial year
Allowance for impairment loss on receivables/
related parties/subsidiaries
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Directors’ remuneration:
- fees
- other emoluments
- retirement contributions
- benefits-in-kind
Hire of equipment
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on non-current asset classified
as held for sale
Impairment loss on refundable deposits
Interest expense:
- bond and MTN
- hire purchase
- syndicated transferable term loan
- foreign currency term loan
- revolving credit
Lease rental of vessels

7
36
36
36
36

217
19

239
6

57
-

116
-

35,715

5,020
36,227

48,851
453

5
445

84
5,301
281
47
34,717

371
4,024
23
259
478
2,982

15
2,045
193
-

371
2,109
17
193
-

4,552
2,154

9,380

-

-

10,152
24
5,459
850
85,900

16,218
15
2,894
1,837
687
102,247

10,152
20
850
-

16,218
11
1,751
687
-
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30. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONT’D)

Note
(Gain)/Loss on foreign exchange:
- realised
- unrealised
Property, plant and equipment written off
Rental of premises
Staff costs
Accretion of refundable deposits at amortised cost
Dividend income:
- associate
- subsidiaries
Loss on dilution of interest in associate
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of non-current asset
classified as held for sale
Interest income from:
- associate
- fixed deposits
- subsidiaries
Rental income:
- subsidiaries
- third party
Waiver of debts

7

The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

(2,398)
(4,076)
95
795
38,442
(12,698)

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

5,507
(9,464)
9
795
40,862
(3,657)

3,116

-

(158)
3
366
4,171
(289)
(35,850)
-

138
366
4,471
(577)
(10,946)
-

1,331

(424)

2,311

1,509

-

(5,855)

-

-

(1,131)
-

(2,301)
(1,368)
-

(1,048)
-

(2,301)
(1,298)
(924)

(8)
(107)

(408)
-

(158)
-

31. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

Current tax expense:
- Malaysian tax
- foreign tax

1,392
271

(2,392)
652

164
-

-

- under/(over)provision in the previous financial year

1,663
402

(1,740)
(741)

164
-

(8)

2,065

(2,481)

164

(8)

(286)
(1,255)

475
1,515

-

-

(1,541)

1,990

-

-

Deferred taxation (Note 20):
- relating to origination and recognition of temporary differences
- underprovision in the previous financial year

524

(491)

164

(8)
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31. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT’D)
A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to the loss before taxation at the statutory tax rates to the income tax
expense at the effective tax rate of the Group and of the Company is as follows:The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

Loss before taxation

(68,882)

(68,633)

(35,071)

(17,003)

Tax at the statutory tax rates of 25%

(17,221)

(17,158)

(8,768)

(4,251)

Tax effects of:Non-taxable gains
Non-deductible expenses
Utilisation of previously unrecognised deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets not recognised during the year
Under/(Over)provision of current tax in the previous financial year
(Over)/Underprovision of deferred tax in the previous financial year
Differential in tax rates

(53,821)
75,401
(3,341)
406
402
(1,255)
(47)

(4,194)
23,396
(3,175)
(741)
1,515
(134)

(9,201)
18,133
-

(2,920)
7,171
(8)
-

Tax for the financial year

524

(491)

164

(8)

32. LOSS PER SHARE
The basic loss per share (“EPS”) is arrived at by dividing the Group’s loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company
of RM69,171,000 (2010 - RM67,738,000) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the financial
year of 454,559,540 (2010 - 334,463,671) ordinary shares.
Diluted loss per share was not presented for as the effect arising from the assumed conversion of the Warrants is anti-dilutive.
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33. DIVIDEND
The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
In respect of financial year ended 31 December 2009
First and final dividend of 2.0 sen per ordinary share of RM0.50 each less tax of 25%

-

4,464

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2011.

34. PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

Property, plant and equipment purchased
Less: Amount financed through hire purchase

134,370
-

191,345
(390)

4,613
-

6,838
(390)

Cash disbursed for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment

134,370

190,955

4,613

6,448

35. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Fixed deposits with licensed banks
Cash and bank balances

Less: Fixed deposits pledged as security (Note 15)

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

44,221
22,791

51,188
18,293

43,241
1,000

47,360
3,018

67,012
(26,741)

69,481
(31,538)

44,241
(26,741)

50,378
(29,060)

40,271

37,943

17,500

21,318
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36. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The aggregate amount of remuneration received and receivable from the Group by directors of the Company during the
financial year are as follows:The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Executive Directors:
- current year fee
- overprovision of fee in the previous financial year
- non-fee emoluments

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

(201)
5,154

199
4,027

(201)
2,026

199
2,106

4,953

4,226

1,825

2,305

285
147

172
20

216
19

172
20

432

192

235

192

Total directors’ remuneration
Estimated money value of benefits-in-kind

5,385
281

4,418
259

2,060
193

2,497
193

Total directors’ remuneration, including benefits-in-kind

5,666

4,677

2,253

2,690

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
- fee
- non-fee emoluments
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36. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (CONT’D)
The number of directors of the Company whose total remuneration received/receivable from the Group during the financial
year fell within the following bands is analysed below:Number Of Directors
The Group
The Company
2011
2010
2011
2010
Executive Directors
Below RM50,000
RM50,001 – RM100,000
RM100,001 – RM150,000
RM500,001 – RM550,000
RM550,001 – RM600,000
RM600,001 – RM650,000
RM750,001 – RM800,000
RM850,001 – RM900,000
RM950,001 – RM1,000,000
RM1,000,001 – RM1,050,000
RM1,050,001 – RM1,100,000
RM1,650,001 – RM1,700,000

1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1
1
1

1
1
1
1
-

1
1
1
1
1
1
-

4

6

4

6

4

6
1

4

6
1

4

7

4

7

8

13

8

13

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Below RM50,000
RM50,001 – RM100,000
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37. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
The Group has related party relationships with:(a) its subsidiaries, associate and related parties as disclosed in Note 5, Note 6 and Note 14 to the financial statements; and
(b) key management personnel of the Group.
In addition to the information detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group carried out the following transactions
with the related parties during the financial year:-

Note
Associate:
- dividend income
- interest and finance income
Subsidiaries:
- dividend income
- handling fee paid/payable
- interest and finance income
- rental income
Related parties:
- chartered vessel income
- sales of property, plant and equipment

Key management personnel compensation:
- short-term employee benefits
- post employment benefits

The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

-

2,301

289
-

577
2,301

-

-

35,850
256
408

10,946
522
924
158

93,098
-

94,070
96,600

-

-

5,666
-

5,752
23

2,253
-

2,673
17

(i)

Note:(i)

A company in which a director of a subsidiary has a substantial financial interest.

The details of the outstanding amounts with the subsidiaries and the related parties are disclosed in Note 8 and Note 14 to
the financial statements.
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38. CAPITAL COMMITMENT
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

Approved and Contracted for
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

63,750

198,276

-

4,547

39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

Unsecured
Corporate guarantee given to licensed banks and
financial institutions for credit facilities granted
to a related party

9,878

9,508

9,878

9,508

Bank guarantee granted to third parties for benefit
of subsidiaries

2,552

2,320

2,552

2,320

Performance guarantee extended by a subsidiary
to a third party

5

5

-

-

12,435

11,833

12,430

11,828

40. LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Lease rentals payable:
- within one year
- within two to five years
- within six to ten years

76,121
257,900
99,724

105,137
373,316
232,191

433,745

710,644

The lease rentals payable are in respect of lease agreements entered into by subsidiaries for lease of vessels for periods
ranging from five (5) to ten (10) years and for the office and warehouse.
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41. FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES
The applicable closing foreign exchange rates used (expressed on the basis of one unit of foreign currency to Ringgit Malaysia
equivalent) for the translation of material foreign currency balances at the end of the reporting period are as follows:The Group/The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Australian Dollar
Singapore Dollar
United States Dollar

3.2220
2.4418
3.1725

3.1515
2.3908
3.0905

42. OPERATING SEGMENTS
Operating segments are prepared in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Group Executive Committee
as its chief operating decision maker in order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their performance. For
management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based on their products and services provided.
The Group is organised into two (2) main business segments as follows:(i)

Marine offshore support services segment – provision of vessels for the upstream oil and gas industry, ranging from towing,
mooring and anchoring of non-self propelled marine vessels; transportation of drilling equipment, production chemicals
and project materials to engineering and workshop facilities onboard.

(ii) Investment holding segment – provide group-level corporate services and treasury functions and investments in equities.
The Group Executive Committee assesses the performance of the operating segments based on operating results which are
measured differently from those disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.
Assets, liabilities and expenses which are common and cannot be meaningfully allocated to the operating segments are
presented under unallocated items. Unallocated item comprises mainly investment in associate.
Transfer prices between operating segments are at arm’s length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties.
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42. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D)
Business Segments

2011
Revenue
External revenue
Inter-segment revenue

Results
Segment results
Finance costs

Marine
Offshore
Support
Services
RM’000

Investment
Holding
Elimination
RM’000
RM’000

Group
RM’000

255,864
174,256

36,547

(210,803)

255,864
-

430,120

36,547

(210,803)

255,864

(38,131)
(7,432)

(21,928)
(11,176)

8,970
-

(51,089)
(18,608)

(45,563)

(33,104)

8,970

(69,697)

Share of results in an associate
Income tax expense

815
(524)

Consolidated loss after taxation

(69,406)

Assets
Segment assets

635,183

571,924

(400,283)

Deferred tax assets
Tax recoverable

46
3,361

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

810,231

461,602

121,324

(246,168)

Deferred taxation
Provision for taxation

336,758
2,507
773

Consolidated total liabilities

Other segment items
Additions to non-current assets
other than financial instruments:
- investment in subsidiary
- property, plant and equipment

806,824

340,038

8,848
129,757

4,613

(8,848)
-

134,370
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42. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D)
Business Segments (Cont’d)

2010
Revenue
External revenue
Inter-segment revenue

Results
Segment results
Finance costs

Marine
Offshore
Support
Services
RM’000

Investment
Holding
Elimination
RM’000
RM’000

Group
RM’000

254,887
168,410

11,681

(180,091)

254,887
-

423,297

11,681

(180,091)

254,887

(73,120)
(4,641)

2,222
(19,426)

20,569
1,112

(50,329)
(22,955)

(77,761)

(17,204)

21,681

(73,284)

Share of results in an associate
Income tax expense

4,651
491

Consolidated loss after taxation

(68,142)

Assets
Segment assets

603,023

662,980

(441,652)

Deferred tax assets
Tax recoverable

46
3,758

Consolidated total assets

Liabilities
Segment liabilities

828,155

355,748

210,968

(251,985)

Deferred taxation
Provision for taxation

314,731
4,048
860

Consolidated total liabilities

Other segment items
Additions to non-current assets
other than financial instruments:
- investment in subsidiary
- property, plant and equipment

824,351

319,639

184,507

55
6,838

(55)
-

191,345

PPB ar2011(2):Layout 1 5/25/12 12:51 PM Page 113

2011 Annual Report

113

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2011

42. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONT’D)
Business Segments (Cont’d)
The following items are added to/(deducted from) segment profit to arrive at the consolidated loss after taxation:The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Accretion of refundable deposits at amortised cost
Loss on dilution of interest in associate
(Loss)/Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of non-current asset classified as held for sale
Allowance for impairment loss on receivables/related parties
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
Impairment loss on non-current asset classified as held for sale
Impairment loss on refundable deposits

12,698
(3,116)
(1,331)
(34,717)
(4,552)
(2,154)

3,657
424
5,855
(5,020)
(2,982)
(9,380)

Geographical Segments
The Group
Revenue
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Malaysia
Singapore
Marshall Islands
Australia

The Group
Non-current Assets
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

197,802
48,303
9,750
9

169,877
51,898
33,079
33

555,231
287
85,891
38

467,344
399
144,307
51

255,864

254,887

641,447

612,101

Major Customers
Revenue from four (4) major customers, with revenue equal to or more than 10% of Group revenue, amounts to
RM197,551,957 (2010 - RM221,990,000).
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group’s activities are exposed to a variety of market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall financial risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies
The Group’s policies in respect of the major areas of treasury activity are as follows:(i) Market Risk
(i)

Foreign Currency Risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising mainly from normal trading transactions that are
denominated in foreign currencies. It manages its foreign exchange exposure by a policy of matching as far as
possible receipts and payments in each individual currency. The Group’s foreign currency transactions and
balances are substantially denominated in United States Dollar (USD). Foreign currency risk is managed to an
acceptable level.
On occasion, the Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to the
foreign currency risk.

The Group

United
States
Dollar
RM’000

Singapore Australian
Dollar
Dollar
RM’000
RM’000

Ringgit
Others Malaysia
RM’000 RM’000

Total
RM’000

2011
Financial assets
Refundable deposits
Trade and other receivables
Amount owing by related parties
Fixed deposits with licensed banks
Cash and bank balances

95,724
9,336
5,776
980
7,401

6,872
921

460
1,642

59
25

24,945
20,337
43,241
12,802

95,724
41,212
26,573
44,221
22,791

119,217

7,793

2,102

84

101,325

230,521

31,300
1
159,264

4,444
44

2,028
-

1,591
-

2,449
20,521
32
115,084

2,449
59,884
33
274,392

190,565

4,488

2,028

1,591

138,086

336,758

Net financial (liabilities)/assets
Less: Net financial liabilities/(assets)
denominated in the respective
entities functional currencies

(71,348)

3,305

74

(32,427)

4,607

82

Currency exposure

(38,921)

(1,302)

(8)

Financial liabilities
Derivative liability
Payables
Amount owing to related parties
Borrowings

(1,507)

(1,507)

(36,761) (106,237)

(36,735)

(64,473)

(26)

(41,764)
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(i) Market Risk (Cont’d)
(i)

Foreign Currency Risk (Cont’d)

The Group

United
States
Dollar
RM’000

Singapore Australian
Dollar
Dollar
RM’000
RM’000

Ringgit
Others Malaysia
RM’000 RM’000

Total
RM’000

2010
Financial assets
Refundable deposits
Trade and other receivables
Amount owing by related parties
Fixed deposits with licensed banks
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities
Derivative liability
Payables
Amount owing to related parties
Borrowings

Net financial assets/(liabilities)
Less: Net financial (assets)/liabilities
denominated in the respective
entities functional currencies
Currency exposure

90,930
36,164
4,189
13,845

2,167
758
2,478
1,278

9
451
650

9

15,626
31,216
48,710
2,511

90,930
53,966
36,614
51,188
18,293

145,128

6,681

1,110

9

98,063

250,991

27,239
1
-

9,001
61

944
-

1,916
-

3,070
27,632
32
244,835

3,070
66,732
33
244,896

27,240

9,062

944

1,916

275,569

314,731

117,888

(2,381)

166

(1,907)

(177,506)

(63,740)

95,478

2,846

166

(177,114)

(78,624)

22,410

(5,227)

-

(1,907)

(392)

14,884
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(i) Market Risk (Cont’d)
(i)

Foreign Currency Risk (Cont’d)

The Company

United
States
Dollar
RM’000

Ringgit
Malaysia
RM’000

Total
RM’000

2011
Financial assets
Receivables
Amount owing by subsidiaries
Amount owing by related parties
Fixed deposits with licensed banks
Cash and bank balances

46

58
328,418
259
43,241
954

58
328,418
259
43,241
1,000

46

372,930

372,976

-

6,162
81,450
32
115,084

6,162
81,450
32
115,084

-

202,728

202,728

Net financial assets
Less: Net financial assets denominated
in the entity’s functional currency

46

170,202

170,248

(170,202)

(170,202)

Currency exposure

46

Financial liabilities
Payables
Amount owing to subsidiaries
Amount owing to related parties
Borrowings

-

-

46
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(i) Market Risk (Cont’d)
(i)

Foreign Currency Risk (Cont’d)

The Company

United
States
Dollar
RM’000

Ringgit
Malaysia
RM’000

Total
RM’000

2010
Financial assets
Receivables
Amount owing by subsidiaries
Amount owing by related parties
Fixed deposits with licensed banks
Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities
Payables
Amount owing to subsidiaries
Amount owing to related parties
Borrowings

1,585

1,416
271
259
47,360
1,433

1,416
271
259
47,360
3,018

1,585

50,739

52,324

-

8,787
123,839
32
200,186

8,787
123,839
32
200,186

-

332,844

332,844

(282,105)

(280,520)

Net financial assets/(liabilities)
Less: Net financial liabilities denominated
in the entity’s functional currency

1,585
-

282,105

282,105

Currency exposure

1,585

-

1,585
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(i) Market Risk (Cont’d)
(i)

Foreign Currency Risk (Cont’d)
Foreign currency risk sensitivity analysis
The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in the foreign currencies as at
the end of the reporting period, with all other variables held constant:The Group
2011
2010
Increase/
Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease)
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
2010
Increase/
Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease)
RM’000
RM’000

Effects on profit or loss
United States Dollar:
- strengthened by 10%
- weakened by 10%

(3,892)
3,892

2,241
(2,241)

Singapore Dollar:
- strengthened by 10%
- weakened by 10%

(130)
130

(523)
523

United States Dollar:
- strengthened by 10%
- weakened by 10%

(3,892)
3,892

2,241
(2,241)

Singapore Dollar:
- strengthened by 10%
- weakened by 10%

(130)
130

(523)
523

4
(4)

-

159
(159)

-

Effects on equity

4
(4)

-

159
(159)

-
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(i) Market Risk (Cont’d)
(ii) Interest Rate Risk
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk arises mainly from its short-term deposits with licensed banks and the
interest-bearing borrowings. On occasion, the Group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to
manage its exposure to the interest rate risk.
Surplus funds are placed with licensed financial institutions at the most favourable interest rates.
Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis
The following table details the sensitivity analysis to a reasonably possible change in the interest rates of the
floating rate borrowings as at the end of the reporting period, with all other variables held constant:The Group
2011
2010
Increase/
Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease)
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
2010
Increase/
Increase/
(Decrease) (Decrease)
RM’000
RM’000

Effects on profit or loss
Increase of 50 basis points (“bp”)
Decrease of 50 basis points (“bp”)

(524)
524

(165)
165

-

-

(524)
524

(165)
165

-

-

Effects on equity
Increase of 50 basis points (“bp”)
Decrease of 50 basis points (“bp”)

(iii) Equity Price Risk
The Group’s principal exposure to equity price risk arises mainly from changes in quoted securities prices. Equity
price risk is monitored closely and managed to an acceptable level.
As the Group’s quoted investment is accounted for under the cost method, the sensitivity analysis is not presented.
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(ii) Credit Risk
The Group’s exposure to credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, arises mainly from receivables (including
trade receivables, other receivables and related parties). The Group manages its exposure to credit risk by the
application of credit approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures on an ongoing basis.
The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of the
receivables as appropriate. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to
individually significant exposures, and a collective loss component established for groups of similar assets in respect
of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified. Impairment is estimated by management based on prior
experience and the current economic environment.
Credit risk concentration profile
The Group’s concentration of credit risk relates to the amounts owing by four (4) customers which constituted
approximately 77% of its net trade receivables at the end of the reporting period.
Exposure to credit risk
As the Group does not hold any collateral, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of the financial assets as at the end of the reporting period.
Ageing analysis
The ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables at the end of reporting period is as follows:-

The Group

Gross
Amount
RM’000

Individual
Collective
Impairment Impairment
RM’000
RM’000

Carrying
Value
RM’000

2011
Not past due

10,181

Past due:
- less than 3 months
- 3 to 6 months
- over 6 months

23,241
1,858
1,770
37,050

-

-

10,181

(297)

-

23,241
1,858
1,473

(297)

-

36,753
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(ii) Credit Risk (Cont’d)
Ageing analysis (Cont’d)

The Group

Gross
Amount
RM’000

Individual
Collective
Impairment Impairment
RM’000
RM’000

Carrying
Value
RM’000

2010
Not past due

27,113

Past due:
- less than 3 months
- 3 to 6 months
- over 6 months

11,193
4,839
3,171
46,316

-

-

27,113

(297)

-

11,193
4,839
2,874

(297)

-

46,019

At the end of the reporting period, trade receivables that are individually impaired were those in significant financial
difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit
enhancement.
Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired
The Group believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these receivables. They are substantially
companies with good collection track record and no recent history of default.
Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
A significant portion of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are regular customers that have been
transacting with the Group. The Groups uses ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of the trade receivables.
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(ii) Credit Risk (Cont’d)
Ageing analysis (Cont’d)
The ageing analysis of the Group’s other trade balances (amount owing by related parties) at the end of reporting
period is as follow:-

The Group

Gross
Amount
RM’000

Individual
Collective
Impairment Impairment
RM’000
RM’000

Carrying
Value
RM’000

2011
Not past due
Past due:
- less than 3 months
- 3 to 6 months
- over 6 months

The Group

16,840

-

-

16,840

32
157
7,218

(1,899)

-

32
157
5,319

24,247

(1,899)

-

22,348

Gross
Amount
RM’000

Individual
Collective
Impairment Impairment
RM’000
RM’000

Carrying
Value
RM’000

2010
Not past due
Past due:
- less than 3 months
- 3 to 6 months
- over 6 months

15,078

-

-

15,078

9,515
5,037
1,168

(1,899)
-

-

9,515
3,138
1,168

30,798

(1,899)

-

28,899
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(ii) Credit Risk (Cont’d)
Ageing analysis (Cont’d)
At the end of the reporting period, trade receivables that are individually impaired were those in significant financial
difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables are not secured by any collateral or credit
enhancement.
Trade receivables that are past due but not impaired
The Group believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these receivables. They are substantially
companies with good collection track record and no recent history of default.
Trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired
A significant portion of trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are regular customers that have been
transacting with the Group. The Groups uses ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of the trade receivables.
(iii) Liquidity Risk
The Group’s exposure to liquidity risk arises mainly from general funding and business activities.
The Group practises prudent liquidity risk management by maintaining sufficient cash balances and funding through
adequate amounts of committed credit facilities/credit lines for working capital requirements.
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(iii) Liquidity Risk (Cont’d)
The following table sets out the maturity profile of the financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting period based
on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on the rates at the end of the reporting period):-

The Group

Carrying
Amount
RM’000

Contractual
Undiscounted
Cash Flows
RM’000

Within
1 Year
RM’000

Maturity
1–5
Years
RM’000

Over
5 Years
RM’000

2011
Derivative liability
Payables
Amount owing to related parties
Hire purchase payables
Term loans
Revolving credit

2,449
59,884
33
350
264,042
10,000

2,449
59,884
33
396
290,150
10,114

59,624
33
99
99,627
10,114

2,449
260
297
190,523
-

-

336,758

363,026

169,497

193,529

-

3,070
66,732
33
424
244,472

3,070
66,732
33
493
261,947

66,472
33
98
109,194

3,070
260
357
152,753

38
-

314,731

332,275

175,797

156,440

38

2010
Derivative liability
Payables
Amount owing to related parties
Hire purchase payables
Term loans

PPB ar2011(2):Layout 1 5/25/12 12:51 PM Page 125

2011 Annual Report

125

Notes to the Financial Statements (Cont’d)
For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2011

43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(a) Financial Risk Management Policies (Cont’d)
(iii) Liquidity Risk (Cont’d)

The Company

Carrying
Amount
RM’000

Contractual
Undiscounted
Cash Flows
RM’000

Within
1 Year
RM’000

Maturity
1–5
Years
RM’000

Over
5 Years
RM’000

2011
Payables
Amount owing to subsidiaries
Amount owing to related parties
Hire purchase payables
Term loans
Revolving credit

6,162
81,450
32
305
104,779
10,000

6,162
81,450
32
345
110,351
10,114

5,948
81,450
32
76
74,751
10,114

214
269
35,600
-

-

202,728

208,454

172,371

36,083

-

8,787
123,839
32
363
199,823

8,787
123,839
32
422
215,539

8,573
123,839
32
77
105,188

214
307
110,351

38
-

332,844

348,619

237,709

110,872

38

2010
Payables
Amount owing to subsidiaries
Amount owing to related parties
Hire purchase payables
Term loans

Cash Flow Hedge
The Group enters into a USD-MYR cross-currency interest rate swap to hedge the cash flow and the interest rate
risks of its foreign currency floating rate term loan as disclosed in Note 23(c) to the financial statements. The crosscurrency interest rate swap has the same nominal value of the term loan of USD14,480,000 (equivalent to
RM46,408,400) and is settled quarterly, consistent with the repayment schedule of the said term loan.
The cross-currency interest rate swap has been designated as a cash flow hedge and was assessed to be highly
effective.
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(b) Capital Risk Management
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be able to maintain an optimal capital structure
so as to support their businesses and maximise shareholders’ value. To achieve this objective, the Group may make
adjustments to the capital structure in view of changes in economic conditions, such as adjusting the amount of dividend
payment, returning of capital to shareholders or issuing new shares.
The Group manages its capital based on debt-to-equity ratio. The Group’s strategies were unchanged from the previous
financial year. The debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as borrowings
plus trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents.
The debt-to-equity ratio of the Group as at the end of the reporting period was as follows:The Group
Restated
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Net debt

267,297

242,180

Total equity

470,193

508,516

0.57

0.48

Debt-to-equity ratio

The Group did not breach any gearing requirement during the financial years ended 31 December 2010 and 31 December
2011.
Under the requirement of Bursa Malaysia Practice Note No. 17/2005, the Company is required to maintain a consolidated
shareholders’ equity (total equity attributable to owners of the Company) equal to or not less than the 25% of the issued
and paid-up share capital (excluding treasury shares) and such shareholders’ equity is not less than RM40 million. The
Company has complied with this requirement.
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(c) Classification Of Financial Instruments
The Group
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

The Company
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000

Financial assets
Loans and receivables financial assets
Refundable deposits
Receivables
Amount owing by subsidiaries
Amount owing by related parties
Fixed deposits with licensed banks
Cash and bank balances

95,724
41,212
26,573
44,221
22,791

90,930
53,966
36,614
51,188
18,293

58
328,418
259
43,241
1,000

1,416
271
259
47,360
3,018

230,521

250,991

372,976

52,324

Fair value through profit or loss
Derivative liability

2,449

3,070

-

-

Other financial liabilities
Payables
Amount owing to subsidiaries
Amount owing to related parties
Borrowings

59,884
33
274,392

66,732
33
244,896

6,162
81,450
32
115,084

8,787
123,839
32
200,186

336,758

314,731

202,728

332,844

Financial liabilities
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(d) Fair Values Of Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities reported in the financial statements approximated
their fair values except for the following:2011
Carrying
Amount
RM

Fair
Value
RM

2010
Carrying
Fair
Amount
Value
RM
RM

The Group
Refundable deposits
Borrowings

95,724
274,042

89,880
266,198

90,930
244,472

90,222
223,940

114,779

109,942

199,823

185,993

The Company
Borrowings

The following summarises the methods used to determine the fair values of the financial instruments:(i)

The financial assets and financial liabilities maturing within the next twelve (12) months approximated their fair values
due to the relatively short-term maturity of the financial instruments.

(ii) The fair values of the refundable deposits and borrowings are determined by the discounting the relevant cash flows
using current interest rates for similar instruments as at the end of the reporting period.
(iii) The fair value of the derivative instrument is based on broker quotes.
The interest rates used to discount estimated cash flows, where applicable, are as follows:Group
2011
%
Refundable deposits
Borrowings

6.34
5.50

2010
%
5.03
6.15

Company
2011
2010
%
%
6.65

6.30
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT’D)
(e) Fair Value Hierarchy
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are analysed into level 1 to 3 as follows:Level 1 : Fair value measurements derive from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.
Level 2 : Fair value measurements derive from inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3 : Fair value measurements derive from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
The Group has carried its derivative liability that is classified as fair value through profit or loss at its fair value. This financial
asset belongs to level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

44. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR
The details of the significant events during the financial year are as follows:(i)

On 8 April 2011, Ampangship Marine Sdn. Bhd. (“AMS”) entered into a MOA dated 23 March 2011 to dispose of its
accommodation workbarge namely, Emerald to PT PANN (Persero), a company incorporated in Indonesia for a total cash
consideration of USD8.2 million. The disposal was completed during the financial year upon delivery of the accommodation
workbarge to PT PANN (Persero).

(ii) On 16 June 2011, Perdana Mercury Limited (“PML”) and Mount Tahan LLC (“Mount Tahan”) jointly declared and agreed
to terminate bareboat charter agreement on the anchor handling tug and supply vessels, namely Petra Majestic, as well
as the option to purchase the vessel at agreed times with Mount Tahan.
(iii) On 22 June 2011, the Company announced that it had filed a suit in the High Court of Malaya in Kuala Lumpur against
Tengku Dato’ Ibrahim Petra bin Tengku Indra Petra, Wong Fook Heng, Tiong Young Kong, Lee Mee Jiong, TA Securities,
Yap Hock Heng and TA First Credit Sdn Bhd, to claim for losses and damages suffered by the Company, in respect of,
inter alia, the divestment of 10,500,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each in PEB, by the Company to TA Securities on 10
September 2009 and the divestment of 48,800,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each in PEB by the Company as conducted
by the TA Securities and Yap Hock Heng on 11 December 2009. This suit is mounted on several causes of action, including
breaches of fiduciary and statutory duties, accessory liability and conspiracy and the Company is seeking from the High
Court, various declaratory reliefs, damages (general and/or fiduciary and/or aggravated) to be assessed, interest, account
and disgorgement and costs.
The Trial initially scheduled for 26 March 2012 to 30 March 2012 has been adjourned and fixed for hearing on 4 June
2012 to 8 June 2012.
(iv) On 6 July 2011, the Company disposed of its investment of 1 ordinary share of USD 1.00 in its wholly-owned Federal
Territory Labuan incorporated subsidiary, Perdana Pluto Limited (“PPL”), to its wholly-owned Singapore incorporated
subsidiary, Perdana Marine Offshore Pte Ltd. The consideration for the disposal is USD1.00. The effective interest of the
Company in PPL remained status quo.
(v) On 8 July 2011, the Board of Directors announced that the Company’s name has been changed from Petra Perdana
Berhad to Perdana Petroleum Berhad effective from 7 July 2011.
(vi)

On 12 July 2011, PML had mutually agreed to terminate the bareboat charter agreement with Mount Tahan LLC on the
anchor handling tug and supply (AHTS) vessel, namely Petra Admiral as well as the option to purchase the AHTS Vessel
at agreed times with Mount Tahan LLC.
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44. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR (CONT’D)
(vii) On 21 November 2011, Intra Oil Services Berhad filed a statement of defence and counterclaim at the High Court of
Malaya in Malacca in relation to Team Marine Shipyard (M) Sdn. Bhd. in the writ of summons and statement of claim
dated 23 September 2011.
(viii) On 25 November 2011, the Company announced the completion of a private placement of 45,012,000 new ordinary
shares of RM0.50 each in the Company following the listing of and quotation for the said new shares on the Main Market
of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) which were issued and allotted on 8 December 2011 at an
issue price of RM0.71 per share.

45. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(i)

On 6 April 2012, the Company was served with a Writ of Summons together with the Statement of Claim both dated 5
April 2012 by Messrs T.S. Hariharan & Partners, acting for Tengku Dato’ Ibrahim Petra bin Tengku Indra Petra (“Plaintiff”),
claiming for injuctions against Perdana Petroleum Berhad (formerly known as Petra Perdana Berhad), Shamsul Bin
Saad, Dato’ Kho Poh Eng, Koh Pho Wat, Surya Hidayat Bin Abdul Malik, Ganesan A/L Sundaraj, Raja Anuar Bin Raja
Abu Hassan, Idris Bin Zaidel, Hamdan Bin Rasid, Soon Fook Kian, Jeffrey Ng Chong Yau and Christopher Then Ted
Loong from accessing in any way and in any manner the Plaintiff’s email account, to refrain from using in any way and
to return to the Plaintiff all information accessed in any manner and in any way from the Plaintiff’s email account and
claims for general and exemplary damages. The Suit will not have any operational impact on the Company.

(ii)

On 26 April 2012, the Company announced the proposed divestment of its entire stake in Petra Energy Berhad (“PEB”),
comprising 57,700,000 PEB shares representing approximately 26.90% interest in PEB, to interested parties who are
persons falling within Schedule 6 of the Capital Markets and Services Act, 2007.

46. PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT
A prior year adjustment was made in the audited financial statements of the associate. In 2010, the associate entered into a
charter hire agreement for a vessel. Pursuant to FRS 117 - Leases, the charter hiring of the vessel should be accounted for
as a finance lease. However, it was accounted for as an operating lease in prior year of which payments were charged to
profit or loss as and when they incurred.
The prior year adjustment in the financial statements of the associate has been incorporated into the Group’s financial
statements and as a result, certain comparative figures have been restated as follows:As Previously
Reported
RM’000

Increase/
(Decrease)
RM’000

As
Restated
RM’000

88,420
278,975

4,264
4,264

92,684
283,239

387

4,264

4,651

The Group
At 31 December 2010
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position (Extracts):Investment in Associate
Reserves

For the Financial Year Ended 31 December 2010
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Extracts):Share of results in an associate
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47. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - DISCLOSURE OF REALISED AND UNREALISED PROFITS
The breakdown of the retained profits of the Group and of the Company as at the end of the reporting period into realised and
unrealised profits are presented in accordance with the directive issued by Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and prepared
in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the
Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute
of Accountants, as follows:The Group
Restated
2011
2010
RM’000
RM’000
Total retained profits:
- realised
- unrealised

Total share of retained profits from associate:
- realised
- unrealised

The Company
2011
RM’000

2010
RM’000

58,742
(4,718)

189,677
(29,406)

102,835
46

138,071
45

54,024

160,271

102,881

138,116

-

-

60,835
(8,477)

62,568
(5,731)

Less: Consolidation adjustments

106,382
69,509

217,108
27,954

102,881
-

138,116
-

At 31 December

175,891

245,062

102,881

138,116

The disclosure of realised and unrealised profits above is solely for complying with the disclosure requirements stipulated in
the directive of Bursa Securities and should not be applied for any other purposes.

PPB ar2011(2):Layout 1 5/25/12 12:51 PM Page 132

132

Perdana Petroleum Berhad

List of Properties
As at 31 December 2011

Address

Description

Status

Remaining
Lease Period

Age of
Property

NBV

Perdana Petroleum Berhad
(formerly known as
Petra Perdana Berhad)
No. 4, Jalan Seri Utara 1
Seri Utara, Batu 7, Jalan Ipoh
68100 Kuala Lumpur

Shop Office

Leasehold

64

13

1,627
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Statistical Report
As at 30 April 2012

ANALYSIS BY SIZE OF WARRANT HOLDINGS
No. of Warrants in issue
Exercise Price of Warrants
Expiry Date of Warrants
Voting Rights

:
:
:
:

61,379,785
RM1.00
26 October 2015
One vote per warrant held
No. of
Warrant Holders

% of
Warrant Holders

No. of
Warrant Holding

% of
Warrant Issued

Less than 100
100 – 1,000
1,001 – 10,000
10,001 – 100,000
100,001 – less than 5% of issued Warrants
5% and above of issued Warrants

237
978
1,071
565
69
2

8.11
33.47
36.65
19.34
2.36
0.07

11,225
548,331
4,732,362
18,583,597
26,942,219
10,562,051

0.02
0.89
7.71
30.28
43.89
17.21

Total

2,922

100.00

61,379,785

100.00

Size of Shareholdings

LIST OF DIRECTORS’ WARRANT HOLDINGS AS AT 30 APRIL 2012

Name of Directors
Dato’ Kho Poh Eng
Koh Pho Wat
Shamsul bin Saad
Surya Hidayat bin Abdul Malik
Ganesan A/L Sundaraj
Raja Anuar bin Raja Abu Hassan
Idris bin Zaidel
Hamdan Bin Rasid

Direct Interest
2,844,724
2,934,200
23,437
-

Note:
Deemed interest pursuant to Section 134(12)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965.

#

No. of shares
%
Indirect Interest
4.63
4.78
0.04
-

14,466#
42,484#
1,312#
-

%
0.02
0.07
-
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THIRTY LARGEST WARRANT HOLDERS AS AT 30 APRIL 2012

No. Name of Shareholders
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.

Lembaga Tabung Haji
Achiever Development Sdn Bhd
Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged securities account for Koh Pho Wat
Kuasatek (M) Sdn Bhd
Kho Poh Eng
Lee Kek Ming
Upstream Downstream Process & Services Sdn Bhd
Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged securities account for Kho Poh Eng
Pang Mui Lim
RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged securities account for Chi Kain Sang
Wong Wee Pok
HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt An for The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV
Ang Eng Huat
Mohd Noor Bin Abd Kadir
TA Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged securities account for Loh Tai Cheong @ Chin Tai Cheong
Tan Geng Sing
RHB Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Pledged securities account for Tan Geng Sing
CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Chung Vui Kong
Chan Choon Ngai
Nor Ashikin Binti Khamis
Yeo Hock Kim
AMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
AmTrustee Berhad for Pacific Pearl Fund
Thoo Hooi Mooi
CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
CIMB Bank for Hooi Hing Lee
Mayban Securities Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged securities account for Lourds Easurajan A/L Arulanandam
Soon Fook Kian
Ong Wee Tiu
Tan Hock Leong
Khaw Siok Chye
Kwan Yok Fun

No of
Shares

% of Issued
and Paid-Up
Share Capital

5,580,000
4,982,051
2,924,201

9.09
8.12
4.76

2,370,600
1,957,224
1,950,000
833,400
793,750

3.86
3.19
3.18
1.36
1.29

734,000
663,775

1.20
1.08

600,600
587,499

0.98
0.96

500,000
500,000
500,000

0.81
0.81
0.81

490,000
455,000

0.80
0.74

402,326

0.66

400,000
386,600
385,800
350,437

0.65
0.63
0.63
0.57

330,000
309,600

0.54
0.50

300,000

0.49

294,000
285,400
277,300
275,000
271,933

0.48
0.46
0.45
0.45
0.44
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ANALYSIS BY SIZE OF SHAREHOLDINGS
Authorised share capital
Issued and paid-up share capital
Class of shares
Voting rights

:
:
:
:

RM500,000,000
RM247,566,000 divided into 495,132,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each
Ordinary shares of RM0.50 each
One vote per ordinary share held

No. of
Shareholders

% of
Shareholders

Less than 100
100 – 1,000
1,001 – 10,000
10,001 – 100,000
100,001 – less than 5% of issued shares
5% and above of issued shares

191
811
5,161
2,681
354
3

2.08
8.81
56.09
29.14
3.85
0.03

7,755
621,683
28,044,300
81,200,157
247,184,464
138,073,641

0.00
0.13
5.66
16.40
49.92
27.89

Total

9,201

100.00

495,132,000

100.00

Size of Shareholdings

No. of
Shares

% of
Issued and
Paid-Up
Share Capital

LIST OF DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDING AS AT 30 APRIL 2012

Name of Directors
Dato’ Kho Poh Eng
Koh Pho Wat
Shamsul bin Saad
Surya Hidayat bin Abdul Malik
Ganesan A/L Sundaraj
Raja Anuar bin Raja Abu Hassan
Idris bin Zaidel
Hamdan Bin Rasid

Direct Interest
19,885,078
20,517,731
2,184,375
-

No. of shares
%
Indirect Interest
4.02
4.14
0.44
-

100,000#
311,000#
9,625#
-

%
0.02
0.06
-

Note:
Deemed interest pursuant to Section 134(12)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965.

#

Shares in related corporation
None of the above Directors has any direct interest in shares in the related corporation as at 30 April 2012.

Name
Lembaga Tabung Haji
Dayang Enterprise Holdings Berhad
Achiever Development Sdn Bhd
Tiong Chiong Hiiung
Datuk Tiong Su Kuok

Direct Interest
44,446,000
57,092,600
36,682,353
-

Note:
@
Deemed interest pursuant to Section 6A of the Companies Act, 1965.

No. of shares
%
Indirect Interest
8.98
11.53
7.41
-

1,167,875@
36,682,353@
36,682,353@

%
0.24
7.41
7.41
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THIRTY LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 30 APRIL 2012

No. Name of Shareholders
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.
24.
25.
26.
27.
28.
29.
30.

Dayang Enterprise Holdings Bhd
Lembaga Tabung Haji
Achiever Development Sdn Bhd
Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged securities account for Koh Pho Wat
HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt An for JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association
Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Kumpulan Wang Persaraan (Diperbadankan)
Cosmos Time Sdn Bhd
Kho Poh Eng
Yap Ah Fatt
Amanahraya Trustees Berhad
Amanah Saham Wawasan 2020
CIMB Group Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
AmTrustee Berhad for CIMB Islamic Dali Equity
Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt An for Merrill Lynch Pierce Fenner & Smith
Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Kumpulan Wang Persaraan (Diperbadankan)
Alliancegroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged securities account for Kho Poh Eng
AmBank (M) Berhad
Pledged securities account for Kho Poh Eng
HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt An for The Bank of New York Mellon SA/NV
Dushyanthi Perera
HSBC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
HSBC (M) Trustee Bhd for Pertubuhan Keselamatan Sosial
Kam Loong Credit Sdn Bhd
AMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
AmTrustee Berhad for Pacific Pearl Fund
Foo Khen Ling
Kam Loong Mining Sdn Bhd
CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
CIMB Bank for Shamsul Bin Saad
Soon Fook Kian
Amanahraya Trustees Berhad
CIMB Islamic Equity Aggressive Fund
Kwan Yok Fun
HSBC Nominees (asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt An for JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association (U.S.A.)
Rubiah Binti Mohd Yusof
Lim Chin Sean
Amanahraya Trustees Berhad
Amanah Saham Bank Simpanan Nasional

No of
Shares

% of Issued
and Paid-Up
Share Capital

57,092,600
44,446,000
36,535,041
20,444,400

11.53
8.98
7.38
4.13

20,080,500

4.06

12,496,320

2.52

10,463,496
10,000,000
8,450,000
7,430,400

2.11
2.02
1.71
1.50

6,631,000

1.34

6,170,200

1.25

5,300,100

1.07

4,844,600

0.98

4,352,978

0.88

4,308,332

0.87

4,000,000
2,776,600

0.81
0.56

2,430,000
2,300,275

0.49
0.46

2,300,000
2,230,000
2,012,500

0.46
0.45
0.41

1,799,000
1,755,300

0.36
0.35

1,670,000
1,581,300

0.34
0.32

1,400,000
1,301,012
1,300,000

0.28
0.26
0.26
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held at No. 6-8, Jalan Seri Utara
1, Seri Utara, Batu 7, Jalan Ipoh, 68100 Kuala Lumpur on Thursday, 28 June 2012 at 11.00 a.m. for the following purposes:

AGENDA
1.

To receive the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2011 and the Reports of the Directors
and Auditors thereon.

2.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees.

3.

To re-elect the following Directors retiring pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company:

Resolution 1

3.1 Dato’ Kho Poh Eng (Article 103)
3.2 Raja Anuar bin Raja Abu Hassan (Article 103)
3.3 Idris Bin Zaidel (Article 103)

Resolution 2
Resolution 3
Resolution 4

4.

To re-appoint Auditors and to authorise the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.

Resolution 5

5.

As Special Business
To consider and if thought fit, pass the following Resolutions:
ORDINARY RESOLUTION
Authority to issue shares pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965

Resolution 6

“THAT pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965 and subject always to the approval of the relevant authorities,
the Directors be and are hereby empowered to issue shares in the Company from time to time and upon such terms and
conditions and for such purposes as the Directors may deem fit provided that the aggregate number of shares issued pursuant
to this resolution does not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company for the time being and that the Directors
be and are also empowered to obtain the approval for the listing of and quotation for the additional shares so issued on the
Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and that such authority shall continue in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting of the Company.”
SPECIAL RESOLUTION NO. 1
Amendment to the Articles of Association

Resolution 7

“THAT the existing Article 88 be amended as follows:
Existing Article 88
A shareholder may appoint more than two (2) proxies to attend the same meeting. Where a shareholder appoints two (2) or
more proxies, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy. Where a member of a
Company is an authorised nominee as deﬁned under the Central Depositories Act, he may appoint at least one proxy in respect
of each securities account he holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said securities account.
New Article 88
A shareholder may appoint more than two (2) proxies to attend the same meeting. Where a shareholder appoints two (2) or
more proxies, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy. Where a member of the
Company is an exempt authorised nominee, as defined under the Central Depositories Act which is exempted from
compliance with the provisions of subsection 25A(1) of the Central Depositories Act, of which holds ordinary shares
in the company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account (“omnibus account”), there is no limit to the
number of proxies which the exempt authorized nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.”
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By Order of the Board

LEONG OI WAH (MAICSA 7023802)
Company Secretary
6 June 2012

Notes:
A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the abovementioned meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote his stead.
Such proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and Section 149(1)(a) and (b) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply. Where
there are two (2) or more proxies, the member shall specify the proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.
Where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991, it may
appoint at least one (1) proxy in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said
securities account.
The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing (in the common or usual form) under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorized
in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under the seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.
The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that
power or authority must be deposited at Level 17, The Gardens North Tower, Mid Valley City, Lingkaran Syed Putra, 59200 Kuala Lumpur not less
than forty-eight (48) hours before the time set for holding the meeting or adjourn meeting.
Depositors who appear in the Record of Depositors as at 22 June 2012 shall be regarded as Member of the Company entitled to attend the
Sixteenth Annual General Meeting or appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his behalf.
Explanatory notes on Special Business:
Ordinary Resolution
The proposed Ordinary Resolution will give powers to the Directors to issue up to a maximum ten per centum (10%) of the issued share capital of
the Company for the time being for such purposes as the Directors would consider in the best interest of the Company. This authority, unless
revoked or varied by the Company at a general meeting, will expire at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.
The general mandate sought for issue of securities is a renewal of the mandate that was approved by the shareholders on 29 June 2011 (“Previous
Mandate”). The Company had used the Previous Mandate for the Private Placement exercise as announced on 15 November 2011 and raised
proceeds of RM31.96 million through the issuance of 45,012,000 ordinary shares of RM0.50 each at an issue price of RM0.71 each on 8 December
2011 for working capital purposes. The renewal of the general mandate is to provide flexibility to the Company to issue new securities without the
need to convene separate general meeting to obtain its shareholders’ approval so as to avoid incurring additional cost and time. The purpose of
this general mandate is for possible fund raising exercises including but not limited to further placement of shares for purpose of funding of working
capital, repayment of borrowings, payment of refundable deposits in respect of sale and leaseback of vessels and/or investments.
Special Resolution No. 1
The proposed Special Resolution No. 1 is to amend the Company’s Articles of Association in line with the amendments to Main Market Listing
Requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.
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Proxy Form

CDS Acc No.
No. of Shares Held

I/We, ___________________________________________________________________________________________________
*NRIC No./Company No./Passport No. ___________________________ of ___________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
being a Member of PERDANA PETROLEUM BERHAD hereby appoint _______________________________________________
*NRIC No./Company No./Passport No. ___________________________ of ___________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________________________________________________
*and/or failing him/her ______________________________________________________________________________________
*NRIC No./Company No./Passport No. ___________________________ of ___________________________________________
or *the Chairman of the Meeting as *my/*our proxy to vote for *me/*us and on *my/*our behalf at the Sixteenth Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on Thursday, 28 June 2012 at 11.00 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.
*My/*Our proxy(ies) is/are to vote as indicated below:Agenda

Resolution

To approve payment of Directors’ fees.

1

To re-elect Dato’ Koh Poh Eng

2

To re-elect Raja Anuar bin Raja Abu Hassan

3

To re-elect Idris bin Zaidel

4

To re-appoint Auditors of the Company for the ensuing year.

5

To authorize the issuance of shares pursuant to Section 132D
of the Companies Act, 1965.

6

To amend the Articles of Association

7

For

Against

[Please indicate with (X) how you wish your vote to be casted. If no specific direction as to voting is given, the proxy will vote or abstain at his
discretion].

Dated this...................... day of .................................. 2012

.......................................................................
[Signature/Common Seal of Shareholder(s)]
[*Delete if not applicable]
Notes:
A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the abovementioned meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote his stead.
Such proxy may but need not be a member of the Company and Section 149(1)(a) and (b) of the Companies Act, 1965 shall not apply. Where
there are two (2) or more proxies, the member shall specify the proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.
Where a member of the Company is an authorised nominee as defined under the Securities Industry (Central Depositories) Act, 1991, it may
appoint at least one (1) proxy in respect of each securities account it holds with ordinary shares of the Company standing to the credit of the said
securities account.
The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing (in the common or usual form) under the hand of the appointor or of his attorney duly authorized
in writing or, if the appointor is a corporation, either under the seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised.
The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that
power or authority must be deposited at Level 17, The Gardens North Tower, Mid Valley City, Lingkaran Syed Putra, 59200 Kuala Lumpur not less
than forty-eight (48) hours before the time set for holding the meeting or adjourn meeting.
Depositors who appear in the Record of Depositors as at 22 June 2012 shall be regarded as Member of the Company entitled to attend the
Sixteenth Annual General Meeting or appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his behalf.

PPB ar2011(2):Layout 1 5/25/12 12:51 PM Page 140

Fold here

STAMP

PERDANA PETROLEUM BERHAD
c/o Tricor Investors Services Sdn Bhd
Level 17 The Gardens North Tower
Mid Valley City
Lingkaran Syed Putra
59200 Kuala Lumpur

Fold here

